Barking &
Dagenham

Notice of Meeting

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 31 January 2023 - 7:00 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking

Members: Clir Adegboyega Oluwole (Chair), Clir Faraaz Shaukat (Deputy Chair), Clir
Alison Cormack, CliIr Irma Freeborn, Clir Victoria Hornby, Clir Mohammed Khan, Clir
Hardial Singh Rai, Clir Lynda Rice and Clir Sabbir Zamee

Date of publication: 23 January 2023 Fiona Taylor
Acting Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Masuma Ahmed
Tel. 020 8227 2756
E-mail: masuma.ahmed@Ibbd.gov.uk

Please note that this meeting will be webcast via the Council’'s website. Members of the
public wishing to attend the meeting in person can sit in the public gallery on the second
floor of the Town Hall, which is not covered by the webcast cameras. To view the
webcast online, click here and select the relevant meeting (the weblink will be available at
least 24-hours before the meeting).

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declaration of Members' Interests

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare any
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting.

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October
2022 (Pages 3 - 4)

4. Sub-Committee Minutes- To receive the minutes of the Licensing Sub-
Committee meeting held on 20 December 2022 (Pages 5 - 8)

5. Gambling Act 2005: Draft Policy Statement 2023 - 2026 post Public
Consultation (Pages 9 - 134)

6. Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Pages
135 -137)


https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/Internet/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=189&Year=0

10.

Update on Licensing Applications and Hearings (Pages 139 - 141)

Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent

To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to exclude
the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to the nature of
the business to be transacted.

Private Business

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the
Licensing and Regulatory Board, except where business is confidential or certain
other sensitive information is to be discussed. The list below shows why items
are in the private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation
(the relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972 as amended). There are no such items at the time of preparing this
agenda.

Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent



Agenda Annex

Barking &
Dagenham

Our Vision for Barking and Dagenham

ONE BOROUGH; ONE COMMUNITY;
NO-ONE LEFT BEHIND

Our Priorities

Participation and Engagement

e To collaboratively build the foundations, platforms and networks that
enable greater participation by:
o Building capacity in and with the social sector to improve cross-
sector collaboration
o Developing opportunities to meaningfully participate across the
Borough to improve individual agency and social networks
o Facilitating democratic participation to create a more engaged,
trusted and responsive democracy
e To design relational practices into the Council’s activity and to focus that
activity on the root causes of poverty and deprivation by:
o Embedding our participatory principles across the Council’s activity
o Focusing our participatory activity on some of the root causes of
poverty

Prevention, Independence and Resilience

e Working together with partners to deliver improved outcomes for
children, families and adults

e Providing safe, innovative, strength-based and sustainable practice in all
preventative and statutory services

e Every child gets the best start in life

e All children can attend and achieve in inclusive, good quality local
schools

e More young people are supported to achieve success in adulthood
through higher, further education and access to employment

e More children and young people in care find permanent, safe and stable
homes

e All care leavers can access a good, enhanced local offer that meets their
health, education, housing and employment needs

¢ Young people and vulnerable adults are safeguarded in the context of
their families, peers, schools and communities

Page 1




Barking &
Dagenham

Our children, young people, and their communities’ benefit from a whole
systems approach to tackling the impact of knife crime

Zero tolerance to domestic abuse drives local action that tackles
underlying causes, challenges perpetrators and empowers survivors

All residents with a disability can access from birth, transition to, and in
adulthood support that is seamless, personalised and enables them to
thrive and contribute to their communities. Families with children who
have Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND) can access a
good local offer in their communities that enables them independence
and to live their lives to the full

Children, young people and adults can better access social, emotional
and mental wellbeing support - including loneliness reduction - in their
communities

All vulnerable adults are supported to access good quality, sustainable
care that enables safety, independence, choice and control

All vulnerable older people can access timely, purposeful integrated care
in their communities that helps keep them safe and independent for
longer, and in their own homes

Effective use of public health interventions to reduce health inequalities

Inclusive Growth

Homes: For local people and other working Londoners
Jobs: A thriving and inclusive local economy

Places: Aspirational and resilient places

Environment: Becoming the green capital of the capital

Well Run Organisation

Delivers value for money for the taxpayer

Employs capable and values-driven staff, demonstrating excellent people
management

Enables democratic participation, works relationally and is transparent
Puts the customer at the heart of what it does

Is equipped and has the capability to deliver its vision

Page 2




AGENDA ITEM 3

MINUTES OF
LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Monday, 3 October 2022
(7:05 -7:50 pm)

Present: Clir Adegboyega Oluwole (Chair), Clir Faraaz Shaukat (Deputy Chair),
Clir Irma Freeborn, Clir Mohammed Khan, Clir Olawale Martins, Clir Hardial Singh
Rai and ClIr Sabbir Zamee

Apologies: Clir Alison Cormack, Clir Victoria Hornby and Clir Lynda Rice
Declaration of Members' Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

Minutes - 23 September 2020

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2020 were confirmed as
correct.

Minutes - 23 June 2021
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2021 were confirmed as correct.

Gambling Act 2005: Draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2022 -
2025 for Public Consultation

The Service Manager, Environmental Health and Public Protection (SMEH)
presented a report on the draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2022 —
2025, which the Council, as the local Licensing Authority, was required to publish
in accordance with a statutory three-year cycle. The review of the Policy, which
would be the subject of a statutory public consultation, was primarily intended to
bring the document in line with current law and guidance. A further updated
version of the Policy, following public consultation between October and December
2022, would be presented to this Committee in January 2023, before the proposed
final version of it being presented to Assembly for approval.

In response to questions, the SMEH stated that:

e The law required local licensing authorities to operate on a presumption to
grant applications, which meant that applications for gambling premises
licence must be granted unless there was a valid reason to object to the
licence;

e The Local Area Profile, produced by the Council’s Insights team, provided
data on local demographics and factors such as deprivation, which helped
the Council identify areas which were particularly vulnerable to gambling
related harm;

e Applicants for gambling premises licences based in areas which were
particularly vulnerable to gambling related harm were expected to show
how they would mitigate the risks, including the risk to children and young
people, as part of their application;

Page 3



e Spot checks and test purchases to check whether licenced premises were
complying with the law and the conditions of their licence were a very
important part of the Service, and the team were also proactive in keeping
contact with premises licence holders to support them with these aims;

e She was confident that the refreshed Policy was fit for purpose and the
public consultation would provide an opportunity to test this;

e The changes to the Policy, which primarily related to the responsibilities of
gambling premises applicants, were minimal in that there were no
substantial new requirements imposed by the law;

e The law stipulated the key persons and bodies that must be consulted when
changes were made to the Policy; however, the Council would go further
and also consult all councillors, all responsible authorities and the Council’s
Public Health team, as the Service recognised that a wide range of factors
affected the level of risk of gambling related harm, and it was therefore
important to reach a wide range of consultees;

e If a gambling premises was found to be in breach of the law and/or the
conditions of the premises licence, the licence could become the subject of
a review and a decision on the course of action to be taken would need to
be made, including whether the licence should be revoked. These decisions
must be based on the statutory licensing objectives and be made in light of
the Council’s Policy and statutory guidance;

¢ Online gambling was directly regulated by the Gambling Commission, not
local licensing authorities; and

¢ She had raised the issue of the local support and information available to
those suffering with gambling addiction to see if this could be built into the
refresh of Local Area Profile or the refreshed Policy, if the consultation
demonstrated that this was necessary.

Members thanked the SMEH for the report.
8. Update on Licensing Applications and Appeals

The Committee noted the report.

Page 4



AGENDA ITEM 4

MINUTES OF
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 20 December 2022
(7:05 -9:15 pm)

Present: Clir Adegboyega Oluwole (Chair), Clir Faraaz Shaukat (Deputy Chair)
and Clir Sabbir Zamee

Declaration of Members' Interests
There were no declarations of interest.

Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a Premises Licence: Venue 121 - 121
Broad Street, Dagenham, RM10 9HP

The Council’s Licensing Case Officer presented a report in respect of an
application for a premises licence for Venue 121, 121 Broad Street, Dagenham,
RM10 9HP.

The applicant sought the following licensable activities:

Live Music: Monday to Sunday 11:00hrs to 02:00hrs

Recorded Music: Monday to Sunday 11:00hrs to 02:00hrs

Late Night Refreshment: Monday to Sunday 23:00hrs to 02:00hrs
Opening Hours: Monday to Sunday 11:00hrs to 02:00hrs

Three representations had been received in relation to the application. A
representation was received from the Council’s Licensing Authority Responsible
Authority Officer under the licensing objective of the Prevention of Public
Nuisance. A second representation was received from a responsible authority
namely the Metropolitan Police Licensing Officer under the licensing objective —
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Protection of Children from harm. The third
representation was received from the Council’s Environmental Protection Officer
under the licensing objective of Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The Licensing team had been communicating with the applicant via email during
the consultation period to reach to an agreement. At the time of publishing the
report, the applicant had accepted all the conditions suggested by the Licensing
Authority Responsible Authority Officer; however, he had requested if the
Licensing Authority could consider the terminal hours of 23.59.

The Sub-Committee first heard from Chris Hurst, Environmental Protection Officer
(EPO). The EPO advised that following on from his representation contained
within the agenda a noise impact assessment had been undertaken by the
applicant, which had been published as a supplementary agenda. The report from
the assessment indicated that the venue had poor levels of sound insultation
which would result in significant music breakout from the venue. This had been
evidenced by the level of complaints over the last few years; however, it was noted
that the applicant was not in the premise at that time. The assessor could not gain
access to the first floor flat at 123 Broad Street, which shared a party wall with the
premise and the EPO advised that a further assessment would need to be

Page 5



undertaken to include 123 Broad Street. The EPO advised that the application
submitted by the applicant did not do enough to promote the licensing objective,
‘the prevention of public nuisance’ taking into consideration the result of the noise
impact assessment.

The Legal Advisor to the Council asked the EPO to confirm if the rooftop area,
which had been subject to complains previously, was included in the application.
The EPO confirmed that it was not included. Following further questions from the
Legal Advisor, the EPO advised that mitigation works to the property based on the
assessment would cost a significant amount of money.

The EPO advised that if the Sub-Committee were minded to approve the
application, he would suggest further conditions on the licence. These proposed
conditions were then circulated to those present.

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, the EPO advised:

-That the outcome of the acoustic assessment indicated that internal music would
need to be run at a level significantly less than what would be considered
reasonable for entertainment. There would still be breakout of noise from the front
and side of the premise if the volume was turned down at 12am; and

- There was no national or local standards guidance on acceptable noise levels.

PC Owen Dunn then addressed the Sub-Committee, setting out his representation
as included in the agenda. PC Dunn referred to complaints received by the Police
in relation to music and noise, as recently as 20.11.2022 by way of a phone call to
the police and a complaint made to the Councils noise nuisance team on the
3.12.22, while the application was still in the consultation period.

In response to questions from Members, PC Dunn advised:
- At the time of preparing his report, PC Dunn was unaware of who was in
control of the premise as he was only given an email contact of ‘Admin’;
- The premises was not known to be residential in recent years;
- The applicant had indicated that he was not open when the recent
complaints had been received. There were various businesses within 121
Broad Street.

The Applicant, Mr Muhammed Hussain, then addressed the Sub-Committee. Mr
Hussain advised:

- He was bringing a new business into the borough and wanted to give an old
premise a new face with a new business model,

- The application did not include alcohol, which may alleviate some of the
issues faced by the premises previously;

- The premise used to be one venue and during the times it was open there
were very little complaints received. Since the venue had been separated
into several, there had been several complaints received. Mr Hussain
advised that he had spoken to others within the premises to warn them
against holding events where complaints may be received;

- That whilst he did agree some points raised by the EPO, he did not agree
with others, however the mitigations suggested could not be accepted due
to the excessive cost needed. The venue had already been renovated at a

Page 6



significant cost to the applicant;

- The Police reports submitted by PC Dunn had included incidences where
the Police had arrived and found the premises to be quiet with no issues;

- The application was originally applied for up to 02:00 so that events could
go on later if required, however it was anticipated that most events would
finish at 00:30; and

- The company which provided the Noise Impact Assessment had brought
their own speakers with them as it was deemed the sound system within the
premises was not sufficient for the assessment to be undertaken.

In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, Mr Hussain advised:

- The premises was currently not in operation, although a soft opening event
had been held earlier in the month;

- The premises would predominantly be run as a function room for family
parties and weddings;

- The precise occupancy numbers were unknown; however, Mr Hussain
suggested 400 people could be sat downstairs and the capacity was about
1000;

- CCTV had been installed at the premises.

The Chair invited all parties present to sum up their representations before the
Sub-Committee retired to make its decision.

Decision

The Licensing Sub Committee had regard to the s.182 guidance and relevant
legislation, and also had regard for the contents of the agenda and all matters
stated in the hearing.

The Sub Committee resolved to refuse the application.

Primarily, the Sub Committee noted that there was insufficient information
available to ensure they could promote the licensing objectives. Specifically, noise
assessments had been completed at the last minute and were incomplete so far
as the neighbouring premises was concerned. The operating schedule was
significantly lacking in details. There was no Fire Risk Assessment and
nooccupancy figures. The Sub Committee was mindful of the recent tragic events
at the O2 in Brixton resulting from a crowd crush. In order to assess the public
safety objective it was necessary to consider occupancy and crowd control
measures, which was impossible given the current information. Further, given the
absence of information regarding noise mitigation for one of the neighbouring
(adjoining) properties, the Sub Committee had no information before it to establish
suitable conditions to prevent public nuisance arising from noise so far as this
premises was concerned.

The Sub Committee noted the applicants submissions regarding past conduct.
Whilst it does not hold the applicant in any way personally accountable for this, the
fact remains that the building as currently constructed had given rise to significant
noise issues. This was confirmed in the applicants own noise report. Unless and
until those measures were carried out, the LSC could not be satisfied that public
nuisance could be prevented.

Page 7



The Sub Committee considered whether it could impose the conditions
recommended in the noise report; however, noted that the applicant’s operating
schedule provided for noise reduction after 12.a.m. The recommendations were for
noise reduction after 11.p.m. To impose this requirement would be to impose a

condition inconsistent with the operating schedule, which was not permissible
under s18(2)(a) and 4(a)(i).

Page 8



AGENDA ITEM 5

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

31 January 2023

Title: Gambling Act 2005: Draft Policy Statement 2023 — 2026 post Public Consultation

Report of the Operational Director of Enforcement, Regulatory Services and
Community Safety

Open Report For Information

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Karen Collier, Service Manager Contact Details:

Environmental Health & Public Protection E-mail: karen.collier@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Director: Gary Jones, Operational Director, Enforcement, Regulatory
Services and Community Safety

Accountable Strategic Leadership Director: Alison Stuart, Chief Legal Officer and
Interim Monitoring Officer

Summary

The Council, as the local licensing authority for gaming and betting, is required under the
Gambling Act 2005, to have in place a statement of the principles (a ‘policy’) by which it
will abide in carrying out its licensing responsibilities. A period of formal consultation has
been undertaken in respect of the draft Gambling Policy Statement that was considered
by the Licensing and Regulatory Committee on 3 October 2022.

This report sets out the representations received from consultees for further consideration
which has resulted in minor clarification amendments to the draft policy statement, with a
view to agreeing a revised Gambling Policy Statement that may be reported to Cabinet
and then Assembly for final approval.

Recommendation(s)
That the Licensing and Regulatory Committee:

(i) Considers the consultation feedback in Appendix 1, which was received following
the formal consultation on the draft Gambling Policy Statement, and the officers’
comments in Appendix 2, in response to the consultation feedback;

(i) Notes the minor clarification amendments proposed in the draft Gambling Policy
Statement as set out in Appendix 2 and 3;

(i) Recommends to Cabinet that it considers the report and then recommends to
Assembly that the draft Gambling Policy Statement is adopted and published and
advertised by the Environmental Health & Public Protection Service Manager in
accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

Page 9



(iv)  Notes that the policy statement will take effect from the date the final draft of it is
agreed by Assembly.

Reason(s)

The Council is required by law to have a statement of gambling policy. The policy is
intended to promote the licensing objectives stated in the Gambling Act and is linked to
each of the Council’s corporate priorities.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Council is the licensing authority and is
responsible for licensing and overseeing local gambling establishments. Part of this
responsibility is the duty to prepare and publish a statement of the principles (policy
statement) that the Council proposes to apply in exercising its functions under the
Act.

1.2  The Council’s current Gambling Act policy statement came into effect on the 24 July
2019 and was effective for three years.

1.3  There are legally prescribed procedures that the Council must follow before the
policy statement can take effect. This involves making the statement publicly
available by a variety of means for a proportionate amount of time and by
advertising that it has been published. The policy statement must be adopted by the
Assembly.

1.4  The formal consultation was publicised through the ‘One Borough Voice’ pages of
the Council’s website. In addition, direct emails and letters, providing a link to the
Council’'s web page consultation, were sent to key stakeholders.

1.5 Appendix B of the draft Gambling Policy Statement includes a list of the
stakeholders that were consulted.

2. Proposal and Issues

2.1 The representations received during the formal consultation period are produced at
Appendix 1. Appendix 2 also sets out the officer response to the representations,
including any changes made to the policy statement and, where relevant, the
reasons why changes have not been made. There were no fundamental or
significant amendments as a result of the representations made; the changes made
were simply to provide greater clarification on specific matters across the policy
statement.

2.2  This report seeks consideration and comment on the draft revised LBBD policy

following public consultation. The draft version of the policy will be reported to
Cabinet and then Assembly for final approval.

Page 10



41

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

Consultation

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council to consult and this has been
undertaken widely with key stakeholders. The full list of stakeholders consulted can
be found in Appendix B of the draft Gambling Policy Statement.

Formal consultation, as endorsed by the Corporate Strategy Group at its meeting
on 15 September 2022, was undertaken between 26 October 2022 until 30
December 2022, which provided an opportunity, in particular, for the following
stakeholders to provide feedback:

e Responsible authorities

e Service providers and persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the
authority’s functions under the Act

e Ward councillors

e Local licensed operators and relevant trades representative groups

e Publication on the authority’s website

Financial Implications
Implications completed by: Afzal Hussain, Senior Accountant

This report seeks approval for minor clarification amendments to the draft policy
statement, with a view to agreeing a revised Gambling Policy Statement.

The Council, as the local licensing authority for gaming and betting, is required
under the Gambling Act 2005, to have in place a statement of the principles (a
‘policy’) by which it will abide in carrying out its licensing responsibilities.

There is no financial impact of this proposal.
Legal Implications
Implications completed by: Dr Paul Feild Principal Governance & Standards Lawyer

As set out in the report, the Council as a Gambling Licesning Authority is required
by law to have a Gaming Policy which must be reviewed on a periodic basis. There
is Statutory Guidance to Licensing Authorities on how the policy is developed set
out in part 6 of the Guidance. As part of the process there must be consultation and
due regard be given to any representation as set out in paragraphs 6.56 — 61 of
said Guidance.

In determining its policy statement, the Licensing Authority must give appropriate
weight to the views of those it has consulted. In deciding what weight to give, the
factors to be taken into account include:

who is making the representations, the nature of their interest and their expertise
relevance of the factors to the licensing objectives

how many other people have expressed the same or similar views

how far the representations relate to matters that the licensing authority should
be including in its policy statement.

Page 11



6.3

7.1

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2

7.4.3

7.4.4

7.4.5

The final adoption of the Policy is an Assembly function.
Other Implications

Risk Management - This review of the Council’s gambling licensing policy fulfils the
requirement under the Gambling Act 2005 for the Council to have and regularly
review and update a statement of policy. If the Council fails to prepare and publish
the policy statement the Council may be challenged when exercising its functions
under the Act through a number of routes, e.g. service complaints to the Local
Government Ombudsman and judicial review. Conversely, by preparing and
publishing the policy statement, the Council is complying with its legal obligation. In
addition, the Council provides a defined framework within which to exercise its
functions and makes it clear to all stakeholders how the Council intends to exercise
its functions.

Corporate Policy and Equality Impact — The draft revised policy is intended to
promote the statutory licensing objectives. It attempts to do so in a way that
acknowledges and supports the broader Council vision and priorities.

This revision of LBBD’s Gambling Policy Statement and the subsequent public
consultation will support the corporate strategic priorities of “Participation and
Engagement” and “Well-run organization”. The Policy intends to support
responsible operators and sets out to offer protections to our local community. This
supports the corporate strategic priorities of “Inclusive Growth” and “Prevention,
Independence and resilience”.

Equality impacts have been considered in the revision of this policy. An Equality
Impact Assessment screening tool has been completed and submitted to the
Strategy and Participation Team who have confirmed that the draft revised
Gambling Policy Statement does not require a full Equality Impact Assessment.

The equalities impact was further reviewed and considered following the
consultation responses. Consultation feedback referred to the need to protect
children and vulnerable adults from gambling related harm. The Equality Impact
Assessment screening tool has been updated to clarify the specific consultation
period.

The groupings for whom there will be direct impacts, and with whom there will

continue to be efforts made to ensure that impacts are kept under review, are as

follows:

e Age, in relation to children and young people;

¢ Disability, in relation to vulnerable adults; and

e Social Inclusion, in relation to the above plus those whom we may describe as
vulnerable.

It continues to be the case that, across all nine national Protected Characteristic

groupings and our tenth grouping in Barking & Dagenham of social inclusion, based

on feedback from the formal consultation, the impact is predicted to be ‘low

positive’.

A copy of the Equality Impact Assessment screening tool can be found in Appendix
4.

Page 12



7.5 Safeguarding Adults and Children - The third licensing objective specifically
deals with the protection of children. As such, the policy includes detailed best
practice management advice around child protection issues, compiled in
conjunction with expert responsible authorities. This deals with issues such as age-
verification and advertising. Child Protection are a statutory responsible authority
under the Act and are consulted on all new and varied premises licence
applications. The revised policy statement also continues to emphasise the
Council’s focus on protecting adults with care and support needs.

7.6  Health Issues - Although public health is not a licensing objective, the draft policy
recognises the potential impacts of gambling related harm and is intended to
provide adequate protections to vulnerable persons. The draft policy promotes
socially responsible premises management.

7.7 Crime and Disorder Issues - The first licensing objective specifically deals with
the prevention of crime and disorder. As such, the draft policy considers issues
such as location and local levels of crime. The development of the revised policy is
being carried out in conjunction with expert responsible authorities.

7.8 Property / Asset Issues - None directly, any licensable gaming or betting activity
provided on Council run venues would be subject to the same controls as other
commercially run venues or facilities.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:
e London Borough of Barking and Dagenham Statement of Gambling Policy (effective
24 July 2019)
e Gambling Act 2005 Draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2022 2025 for
Public Consultation.pdf (Ibbd.gov.uk)

List of appendices:

e Appendix 1: Consultation Feedback

e Appendix 2: Officer response to consultation feedback

e Appendix 3: Draft revised London Borough of Barking & Dagenham Gambling
Policy Statement 2023- 2026 (Post Consultation Version)

e Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment Screening Tool

Page 13


https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/LBBD-Statement-of-Gambling-Licensing-Policy-2019-2022_2.pdf
https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/internet/documents/s156566/Gambling%20Act%202005%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Gambling%20Licensing%20Policy%202022%202025%20for%20Public%20Consultation.pdf
https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/internet/documents/s156566/Gambling%20Act%202005%20Draft%20Statement%20of%20Gambling%20Licensing%20Policy%202022%202025%20for%20Public%20Consultation.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: Consultation Feedback

Appendix 1 consists of the following documents:

e Document 1 — Online Survey Response Report

e Document 2 — Email from GambleAware

e Document 3 — Letter from Poppleston Allen on behalf of their clients, Merkur
Group

e Document 4 — Email from Councillor

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Document 1

Review of Barking and
Dagenham's Gambling
Policy

SURVEY RESPONSE REPORT
17 October 2022 - 04 January 2023

PROJECT NAME:
Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy

‘a './' BANG THE TABLE
<1~ engagementHQ.



Appendix 1 Document 1


Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

SURVEY QUESTIONS

Page 1 of 12
Page 18



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Q1 Are you responding to this consultation as a...

0 (0.0%)

0 (0.0%)
0 (0.0%)
0 (0.0%)

1 (8.3%)

L 11 (91.7%)

Question options
® Local resident @ Councillor @ Licensed gambling business @ Responsible authority

@ Licensing solicitor or consultant @ Other (please state)

Optional question (12 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Page 2 of 12
Page 19



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objective?

Q2 Preventing gambling premises being a source of crime within the borough

0(0.0%)

3(25.0%) .
_— 4(33.3%)
3(25.0%)
2 (16.7%)

Question options

@ Strongly agree @ Neither agree nor disagree @ Disagree @ Strongly disagree @ Agree

Optional question (12 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Page 3 of 12
Page 20


Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objective?


Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Q3 Please tell us why?

Screen Name Redacted Barking has so much crime and | believe that the betting shops add to
this
Screen Name Redacted The draft highlights how betting premises are a source of crime and

ASB within the borough and how it exploits the most vulnerable
residents, however there is no actual information on what will be done
about this. It is not enough to say 'steps must be taken to reduce x, vy,
z." What are the steps that will be taken? Why are these premises
allowed to exist when residents' well-being is clearly at a detriment?

Screen Name Redacted People congregate in the open and make certain area's a no go area
after a certain time

Screen Name Redacted There are far too many gambling premises on barking station parade
which massively contribute to the sense of grime and poverty people
get of the borough when coming out of barking station. The crime
maps indicate crime is higher closer to these premises which is not a
coincidence. The only way to reverse this is to remove some of these
shops. There is no good reason to have so many of these shops on
the same street (why are there multiple branches of Coral, for
example). Education and licensing restrictions will only go so far as
criminals will continue to loiter near these areas which has a snowball
effect, driving away families, young professionals and economic
contributors. Removing some of these is the best solution and a
necessary step if the borough truly wants to achieve regeneration

Screen Name Redacted No draft can prevent crime and financial loss suffered by gambler and
it's effect and trauma who lives with the gambler. There should be no
betting shop in borough which itself prevent so many crime. People
don't need your draft and policy but make it harder so people can't
gamble at all.

Screen Name Redacted As evident in multiple heat maps, there is an unequivocal, strong
correlation between gambling sites and high crime rates. Where there
are more gambling shops, there is more crime. Whilst the legislation
might make things a tiny bit better, ultimately crime rate will not drop
unless the gambling shops are removed entirely

Page 4 of 12
Page 21



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

The type of crime happening within the borough has nothing to do
with gambling

Gambling should be illegal. It destroys life. Every high street as least
has 2 shops. What is this teaching our kids? We have a responsibility
for our future generations.

Any gambling establishment will attract the wrong type of people,
police stats will show this.

Optional question (9 response(s), 3 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Page 5 of 12

Page 22



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objective?

Q4 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

0(0.0%)

2(16.7%)
——  5(41.7%)
3(25.0%) — ‘

2(16.7%) -

Question options
® Strongly agree @ Neither agree nor disagree © Disagree @ Strongly disagree © Agree

Optional question (12 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Page 6 of 12
Page 23


Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objective?


Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Q5 Please tell us why?

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

This is not an affluent area and its the poorer members of our
community who frequent these places and they can ill afford to loose
what little money they have.

As previously stated, the draft highlights how the most vulnerable
residents are being exploited by betting premises but there is no
concrete information on how this will be resolved. Clearly these sites
are more detrimental than beneficial, so why are they allowed to
operate? Especially in such large numbers. | would like to see a
reduction of premises in the area, they need to be minimised and
limited if they cannot be eradicated.

Gambling is a addiction and a illness

Age restrictions will not stop the consequences of gambling shops
and irresponsible gamblers from exposing children to this world. The
areas around these places attract alcoholics, drug users and
antisocial behaviour. As they are on main roads and near Barking
station, children will be exposed regardless.

It's all rubbish and asking people opinions is silly

Children should not be allowed in at all, period. They should not be
exposed to the culture of gambling nor to the people who endorse
and partake it in it. If you don't want children exposed, keep them as
far away from it as possible

Children?

We need to look after our future generation from harm and debt.
Gambling always has been evil as lots of family financial problems
and kids have no food.

They will always find a way to gsmhle, by having these places you
provide an opportunity at their doorstep.

Page 7 of 12

Page 24



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Optional question (9 response(s), 3 skipped)
Question type: Essay Question

Page 8 of 12
Page 25



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objectives?

Q6 Ensuring gambling is open and fair within the borough

 1(8.3%)

1 (8.3%)
3(25.0%) —~ '
2(16.7%) —
-5 (41.7%)

Question options
@ Strongly agree © Agree @ Neither agree nor disagree @ Disagree @ Strongly disagree

Optional question (12 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Page 9 of 12
Page 26


Do you agree that the draft revised Gambling Policy promotes the following objectives?


Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Q7 Please tell us why?

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

There are too many gambling establishments in Barking.

Barking town centre/station has an unfairly high concentration.

Barking borough is encouraging gambling and playing with peoples
life

Gambling destroys families and life ifva person. Every gambling
sector must be closed.

We live in one of the most deprived areas of London and you want to
encourage those that have next to nothing to gamble? Gambling is
not fair or open. It serves only the companies and empties pockets of
addicts and the poor in society.

Optional question (5 response(s), 7 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Q8 Do you have any comments on the findings of the Local Area Profile, including the

identification of the Betting Premises Clusters?

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Yes - there are too many gambling premises in Barking and this
makes for an unattractive town centre.

| think it is crystal clear that there is a correlation between clusters of
betting premises and the levels of violence, crime and ASB within the
borough. As a woman in my 20s, | certainly feel at risk walking home
from the station due to the characters that hang around the premises.
But | am also concerned for the people who are being exploited.
There are people begging on the streets who immediately go into a
betting premises when they get coins, and if they are sent away from
one, they walk a few metres down the road to the next. What steps
will be taken to help them? | want to see a minimisation in betting
premises for the good of all residents.

Page 10 of 12

Page 27



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

Screen Name Redacted

You have a cluster at the Heathway Dagenham there are more
gambling premises then any other business

The use of these maps is a good idea as they indicate how
irresponsible it is providing new licences in certain areas. | think it is
also telling that the areas that are purely residential, like parts of
longbridge ward with little or no gambling shops, have the highest
levels of household income. This is something that should he strived
for in the rest of the borough.

Barking station can be a good example of Boroughs failure

It is clear that high crime rates and gambling go hand in hand. If it
was up to me, | would remove all of the gambling premises
completely. If they must remain, they should be reduced in number
and away from busy areas that residents and non-residents use. It is
absolutely scandalous that there are 6-8 gambling premises next to
Barking station - a busy station where there are many children,
families and professionals. It is impossible to escape the stink of the
gambling shops. the gamblers themselves and all of the unsightliness
that they bring with them. Barking station should be the pride and
flagship of of the borough, instead it's reputation has been stained
and the area ruined by numerous gambling premises permitted by the
council.. If you insist on having gambling shops, move them away
from the station, food shops and anywhere where children and
women are around. Move them as far away as possible to a dark,
corner where they belong.

Its disgusting to see gambling shops next to tuition centers, next to
places of worship and on every corner of our high street. How is this
benefiting the public. It makes people in loss.

Yes why do we allow these in high poverty areas. If you go to say
Kensington or Wanstead will you see Gambling or offlicenses every
few yards? You don't so why do this?

Optional question (8 response(s), 4 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Page 11 of 12

Page 28



Review of Barking and Dagenham's Gambling Policy : Survey Report for 17 October 2022 to 04 January 2023

Q9 Do you have any comments on the data used in the Local Area Profile?

Screen Name Redacted That they should be considered more throughly
Screen Name Redacted There are too many slot machine stores and betting shops in local
area

Optional question (2 response(s), 10 skipped)
Question type: Essay Question

Q10 If you have any other comments you would like to make regarding the policy, please let
us know.

Screen Name Redacted | think if betting shops must operate they should do so in less
prominent areas and not in areas such as directly opposite a station
as is the case outside barking station. It massively impacts the levels
of perceived safety and will only make people think poorly of the
borough on their first impression. It's shocking how many loiterers,
drinking and drug use, homelessness etc., is seen with the first steps
out of barking station especially at night. | believe betting shops play
a massive part in that that shouldn't be overlooked. There are other,
healthier ways to drive income instead such as food destinations or
culture spots, arcades etc.

Screen Name Redacted What a joke and waste of time for producing draft to prevent crime
related to gambling

Screen Name Redacted Please try to remove the gambling premises

Screen Name Redacted Gambling to be banned. Then the borough will benefit because
families will bond and less abuse happen.

Screen Name Redacted Restrictions on Gambling places in areas of high deprivation.

Optional question (5 response(s), 7 skipped)
Question type: Essay Question

Page 12 of 12
Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Document 2

From: 08 November 2022 15:19
Sent: Licensing
To: GA Response
Subject:
Follow up
Follow Up Flag: Flagged
Flag Status:
Dear Sir / Madam,

Thank you for consulting us on your new draft revised statement of gambling licensing policy.

Due to resource constraints on a small charity, we are not able to offer a specific response on your policy. GambleAware
is fully supportive of local authorities who wish to set out their approach to gambling and gambling policies. You may
find GambleAware’s recently published interactive maps useful, which have been designed for use by local authorities.
The maps show the prevalence of problem gambling severity in each local authority and ward area as well as usage of,
and reported demand for, treatment and support for gambling harms.

Finally, GambleAware is a leading commissioner of prevention and treatment services for gambling harms. It provides
these functions across England, Scotland and Wales and its work is underpinned by high quality research, data, and
evaluation. We encourage all local authorities to signpost people to the National Gambling Helpline on 0808 8020 133
and also www.begambleaware.org. Both are part of the National Gambling Treatment Service and offer free,
confidential advice and support for those who may need it.

Kind Regards,

Gamble.llw\rare®

Phone Note that we are currently remote working so please
contact us by email
Email

BeGamble Aware.org

Is gambling always
on your mind?

For free and confidential advice:

¥ Mational
QA Gamb
N Treatme

Click here or call 0808 8020 133 . EWY

For information and advice visit BeGambleAware.org
For confidential support and treatment: National Gambling Helpline 0808 8020 133

1
Page 31


Appendix 1 Document 2


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Document 3

Merkur Slots UK Limited and Merkur Bingo & Casino Entertainment UK Limited response to London Borough
of Barking & Dagenham Consultation on its draft Statement of Gambling Principles 2022-2025

The Merkur Group of companies is a leading national operator of bingo, AGC and FEC premises with clear and
proactive policies to promote the Gambling Licensing Objectives. Operators of premises licences have full
authority to provide their services by the provision of an Operating Licence granted by the Gambling
Commission. The UK’s gambling regulator has therefore approved the measures implemented and those
policies have been developed that ensure responsible trading in accordance with gambling legislation, the
licensing objectives and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice.

Foreword

We strongly disagree with the commentary included in the draft policy as it does not appropriately identify the
permissive regime envisioned by Parliament and implemented by the Gambling Act 2005. The Authority’s
policy, as per section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005, should contain the principles that it proposes to apply in
exercising its functions under the Gambling Act 2005, it is therefore not an appropriate document to contain
additional commentary, which is beyond the scope of the policy’s function, and it should be removed.

The Local Area Profile

It is acknowledged the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice, Social Responsibility Code
10.1.1. formalised the consideration for local risk assessments. Under Gambling Commission LCCP provisions
operators will be required to complete local area risk assessments that identify risks posed to the licensing
objectives and how these should be mitigated. We refer the Authority to the Regulators’ Code, which provides
that in making an assessment of risk, regulators should recognise the compliance record of those they regulate
and take an evidenced based approach to determining the priority risks in their area of responsibility.

Under paragraph 52, the policy states ‘this authority considers that it is necessary to seek to strictly control the
number of facilities for gambling in areas, where it is most vulnerable residents may be placed at an increasing
risk.” The paragraph also states, ‘all areas shown within the local are a profile as being at high overall risk of
gambling related harm, are generally considered inappropriate for further gambling establishments.’

The purpose of a local area profile is to identify potential risks to the Licensing Objectives, which assist
operators to ensure that proportionate policies and procedures are implemented to mitigate against those
risk.

High risk areas must only be identified where empirical evidence is adduced that clear gambling related harm
would be caused by the presence of gambling related premises. Identification of theoretical risk factors such as
area demographics, proximity to other premises and deprivation should only be included where local evidence
is available, which quantifies the ascertainable risk to be mitigated. Any proposed measures to address risks
identified should be proportionate, effective and tailored to specific concerns identified

Without local evidence of harm associated with existing gambling premises, any suggestion of cumulative
impact is purely theoretical and any presumption of refusal or suggestion of the Authority seeking to ‘strictly
control’ premises is in direct conflict with the governing legislative framework, specifically the S.153 aim to
permit principle, and is open to legal challenge.

Operators will continue to consider new premises locations within the scope of the licensing objectives.
Bingo

Paragraph 128 of the proposed policy states that ‘Bingo should be the main activity with gaming machines an

ancillary offer. To prevent a situation where a bingo premises licence is obtained primarily to benefit from the
gaming machine entitlement that it provides, this Authority will wish to satisfy itself that bingo is intended to

be the principle activity.’

Bingo premises are permitted by law to operate gaming machines. It is not within the Authority’s remit to
determine a licensee’s proposed business model or restrict the activities operated during specified hours
unless evidence led concerns are identified which cannot be mitigated by an operators control measures. It

Page 33


Appendix 1 Document 3


remains incumbent on all licensees to ensure premises are operated in accordance with the governing
legislation and implement extensive and effective policies procedures and control measures to ensure that all
permitted gambling activities are operated in a socially responsible manner. Any presumption of refusal is in
direct conflict with the permissive licensing regime.

Paragraph 128 further states that ‘All tablets or devices shall be maintained fully charged and available for use
at all times” and ‘There shall be sufficient seating provided to enable all tablets or devices to be played upon
the premises at one time’

There is no requirement for tables or seating to be required. As previously stated, all operators need to be fully
compliant with the LCCP requirements, in which facilities for tables and chairs is not one. We strongly urge this
to be removed from the draft policy. Again, enforcement of both statements above would be subject to legal
challenge.

Betting

Paragraph 133 states ‘Where fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBTs) are provided, these gaming machines
should be located within direct line sight of the supervised counter.’

It is appreciated, the recommendation by the policy however, there is no requirement for FOBTSs to be in sight
of a supervised counter. There is no requirement for this under the LCCPS. It should also be noted the FOBTS
are not gaming machines.

Conclusion

We are committed to working in partnership with the Gambling Commission and local authorities to continue
to promote best practice and compliance in support of the licensing objectives.

Page 34



Appendix 1 Document 4

From:

Sent: 31 October 2022 16:44

To: Licensing

Subject: Re: Gambling Licensing Policy Consultation 2022 to 2025
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi,

| defer to my colleagues that have licensing premises in their wards or are au fait with licensing policy and/or
sit on the Committee. | am neither of these things.

One general observation | would make is that | would like to see the policy as strong as possible in terms of
disincentivising new gambling premises, particularly on the Heathway and Barking Town Centre. An anecdote
is that | use to work in Corals at Barking Town Centre 12 years ago and this week I've seen the same
individuals, which were arrested a number of times when | worked there, still hanging outside. | saw a
drunken man beaten up outside paddy power this week too. There seems to be very limited progress on that
front.

Levers that (a) prevent new gambling premises open as much as possible and (b) place the onus - in terms of
cost, where possible - on gambling premises to pay for the determinants of health that gambling premises
exacerbate, would be useful. | know as a local authority we have very limited powers in this policy area. Also, |
think it helpful if, in some way, we can signal what action we would want to take even if we are unable to do
so as this sets a direction (like an obiter in the legal profession).

Westminster's gambling policy adopted late last year / earlier this year appeared to be fairly robust.

Best

From: Licensing <Licensing@Ibbd.gov.uk>

Sent: 27 October 2022 17:38

To: >

Subject: Gambling Licensing Policy Consultation 2022 to 2025
Dear Councillor,

You may be aware that we have very recently commenced a public consultation on the content of the new draft revised
Barking and Dagenham statement of gambling licensing policy. The policy sets out this Council’s proposed approach for
the next 3 years to the licensing and control of local gambling premises (including casinos, betting shops, adult gaming
centres, bingo establishments, and family entertainment centres) and gaming machines.

We aim to encourage a broad response to this consultation. Your views are particularly relevant, and we would be
grateful if you are able to spare some time to consider and respond to this consultation.

1
Page 35


Appendix 1 Document 4


A copy of the Council’s draft policy, together with an online questionnaire can be found by visiting the link provided.

https://oneboroughvoice.lbbd.gov.uk/Ibbd-gambling-policy-2022

You may wish to provide a more detailed response to this consultation. If so, then please send this either by email to
licensing@lbbd.gov.uk or in writing to The Licensing Team ,Regulatory Services ,Barking Town Hall, Town Hall Square,
Barking IG11 7LU. The closing date for all responses is 30 December 2022.

All responses received will be considered and incorporated into the final committee report, when this matter is formally
considered by the Assembly.

If you require further information on the draft policy please email licensing@lbbd.gov.uk.
Regards

Licensing

Page 36



)€ abed

Appendix 2: Officer Response to Consultation Feedback

Consultation
Response
number

Paragraph
number /
Survey
Question

Included in Revised
Policy [Yes/ No / In
Part]

Officer Comments Explanatory Notes

Appendix 1
Document 1

Online
Survey
Questions

No

The comments made in response to the online survey have been noted. The
Council has a statutory duty to produce a statement of licensing policy in relation to
the Gambling Act 2005, which details the Council’'s approach to managing
gambling activity within its jurisdiction. This includes ensuring that applications,
permits and registrations made to the Council for gambling activities uphold the
licensing objectives as set out by the Gambling Act 2005. There cannot be a
presumption for refusal. There is a statutory aim to permit gambling where an
application is consistent with the licensing objectives being achieved. More specific
details relating to how an application meets the licensing objective are considered
as part of the licensing and risk assessment process.

Appendix 1
Document 2

All

Yes

A link to and extracts from GambleAware’s recently published interactive

maps have been added to the Local Area profile in appendix D of the draft revised
policy as they have the potential to assist both applicants in their applications and
sub-committees determining applications. Amendments made to the draft policy
in Appendix D page 62.

Signposting to National Gambling Helpline on 0808 8020 133 and

also www.begambleaware.orq has been included in paragraphs 145 and 165 of
the draft revised policy. Amendments made to the draft policy on page 40
paragraph 145 and page 44 paragraph 165.

Appendix 1
Document 3

No

The comments made requested that the “Foreward” is removed as it was
considered to be additional commentary. There is no section to the policy titled
“Foreward”. There is a notes section and an executive summary which provide



https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2Fgambleaware-gb-maps&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DfCQzoJ8AhaqomvFe%2B07DUlTXU8EudxU6SH9%2FT3Kqlw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2Fgambleaware-gb-maps&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DfCQzoJ8AhaqomvFe%2B07DUlTXU8EudxU6SH9%2FT3Kqlw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4qk7egNWKTL6mOUBMgBiETJJTDeabpyMCuxmoXmOrk0%3D&reserved=0

g€ abed

overview and context for the reader about the relevant sections of the policy. The
Council carries out its licensing functions as stated in the Policy and in accordance
with the Gambling Act 2005.

Appendix 1
Document 3

3-8

No

The comment regarding the Regulators Code is noted. Paragraph 199 of the draft
revised policy states that “This Authority will have full regard to these principles
when carrying out any regulatory activity and to the requirements of the Regulators’
Code.”

The statutory aim to permit gambling is set out in paragraphs 18 and 19 and is also
referred to later in the draft policy for example at paragraphs 52 and 57.

The Council has not said that a premises licence would automatically be refused,
but that it expects applicants to consider the local area information and assess
whether there are any risks and mitigate any risks identified as part of their risk
assessment. If this is achieved consistent with the licensing objectives an
application is likely to be granted. It would be remiss of an applicant to ignore the
local area profile data which includes high levels of deprivation and crime/anti-
social behaviour data when carrying out their risk assessment.

Page 64 point 2 has been amended to include the terminology “and high overall
risk of gambling related harm” which is consistent with paragraph 52.

Appendix 1
Document 3

9-13

In part

Comments are noted.

There is no presumption for refusal. The statutory aim to permit gambling is set out
in paragraphs 18 and 19 and is also referred to later in the draft policy for example
at paragraphs 52 and 57.

Paragraph 57 has been expanded and a footnote has been added to paragraph 93
to ensure that there is no doubt that the authority will apply the correct statutory
tests. Amendments made to draft policy on page 20 paragraph 57 and page 29
paragraph 93.

Paragraph 128 has been clarified to explain that the Authority will need to be




6 abed

satisfied that substantive facilities for non-remote bingo can be played in a
premises for which a premises licence is issued for that purpose and the matters
which will be considered. Amendments made to draft policy on page 37
paragraph 128.

Appendix 1 14-15 Yes Paragraph 133 has been amended to remove the reference to fixed odds betting
Document 3 terminals (FOBT) and replace it with “Category B2 gaming machines”. The
requirement for those gaming machines to be in the direct line of sight of the
supervised counter has been expanded to explain that this is in order to prevent
their use in connection with the proceeds of crime or excessive use by vulnerable
persons. Amendments made to draft policy on page 38 paragraph 133.
Appendix 1 All No The comments made in this consultation feedback have been noted. The Council
Document 4 has a statutory duty to produce a statement of licensing policy in relation to the

Gambling Act 2005, which details the Council’s approach to managing gambling
activity within its jurisdiction. This includes ensuring that applications, permits and
registrations made to the Council for gambling activities uphold the licensing
objectives as set out by the Gambling Act 2005.




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Barking &
Dagenham

Gambling Act 2005

Draft Statement of Gambling Licensing
Policy. 2023-2026 V3

Page 41



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Notes

The Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”) came into force in 2007. It introduced a new,
comprehensive system for gambling regulation in Great Britain, bringing together the
vast majority of commercial gambling into a single regulatory framework.

The Act established a dedicated national regulator in the form of the Gambling
Commission (the Commission). But it also recognised the potential local impact and
importance of gambling. So, it created many local regulators whose job it is to
manage gambling within their area, in line with local circumstance. These are the
368 licensing authorities of England, Wales and Scotland. In doing so,-the Act
established a strong element of local decision-making and accountability in. gambling
regulation.

The Act gives local regulators discretion to manage local gambling. provision,
including discretion as to the level of fees set to coverthe cost.of administering the
local system of regulation within limits set by the Department of Culture, Media and
Sport (DCMS) in England and Wales. It sets out some .boundaries to that discretion,
consistent with the recognition of gambling.as a mainstream leisure activity.

The Act also provides scope for the Commission.to act to set out an overall direction
at national level, while leaving licensing authorities in the lead locally, with
appropriate support from the Commission.

As licensing authority for the Londen Borough of Barking and Dagenham, this
Council is required under.5.349 of the Act to prepare and publish, every three years,
a statement of the licensing principles it proposes to apply in exercising its functions
under the Act. This is commonly known as the statement of licensing policy. The
statement of policy.can be reviewed and revised by the Council at any time but must
be produced following consultation with those bodies and persons set out in s.349 of
the Act.

The Barking and Dagenham Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy sets out how
this Authority intends to exercise its functions under the Act, for the period 2023 —
2026. First published in 2007, this latest draft revision has been prepared having
regard to the Act, secondary regulations, and the Commission’s Guidance to Local
Licensing Authorities (April 2021 Update).

This Council’s current version of the policy for 2019-22 was adopted by the full
Council Assembly on 24 July 2019.

Page 42



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Executive Summary

This Authority recognises that the gambling industry, across its many component parts,
makes a significant contribution to the national economy and provides considerable job
opportunities. It also recognises that gaming and betting provides a legitimate leisure
activity, enjoyed by many people, and that the majority of people who gamble appear to do
so without exhibiting any signs of problematic behaviour.

However, while a thriving gambling industry may be good for the economy, the success of
the industry cannot be at the expense of families affected by problem gambling.

The Assessment of National Gambling Behaviour published by the Gambling Commission in
August 2017 and prepared by NatCen Social Research stated that 1.4% of gamblers were
classed as ‘problem gamblers’ (0.8% of the population), with 6.4% of gamblers were classed
as at risk (3.9% of the population). At the time the Gambling Commission Executive Tim
Miller was quoted as stating that “Whilst overall problem gambling rates:in Britain have
remained statistically stable, our research suggests that iniexcess of two million people are
at-risk or classed as problem gamblers, with very many more impacted by the wider
consequences of gambling-related harm.”

The situation is improving. The latest survey carried out by the Gambling Commission
showed that the rate of problem gambling for the yearto September 2021 had fallen to 0.3
per cent of the population. The study also showed that the rate of those gamblers classed
as being at ‘moderate risk’ of harm fell to 0.7% in.the same time frame. These are significant
reductions and the fall in rates suggests.that work undertaken on promoting safe gambling is
having an impact.

Since the last revision of our policy, we have seen many initiatives develop including using
advertising to promote safer gambling tools like deposit-limits and time-outs; investing more
in research and treatment; funding an education programme provided by GamCare and
YGAM; implementing the credit card ban; and introducing tough new rules on VIP schemes
and changes in game design; as well as using technology to intervene with customers
online.

Furthermore, this'Authority was pleased to see the changes in stakes introduced to fixed
odds betting:terminals in 2019, which this Authority supported.

Still, gambling related harm is recognised as a ‘co-morbidity’ (i.e. one of a range of
conditions existing in an individual that exacerbates pre-existing conditions and contributes
toward a reduced life expectancy). It is often observed in people who suffer from poor mental
health; stress or anxiety; substance misuse; and financial difficulties.

As such, it potentially extends beyond the individual through work and study, personal,

financial legal and interpersonal circumstances and affects the community around the
individual and local community services. The prevalence of problem gamblers based on the

Page 43



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Health Survey for England 2012 indicated there could be in excess of 1,400 individuals who
are problem gamblers within Barking and Dagenham.

The costs to society (i.e. the excess fiscal costs caused by people who are problem
gamblers beyond those that are normally incurred otherwise by members of the
public) are felt through health; housing and homelessness; unemployment; and
imprisonment. Using the Health Survey as a basis the total excess costs in Barking
and Dagenham could be anything up to £2.2 million.

For these reasons, this Authority has set out to establish a gambling licensing policy
which recognises good industry practice and intends to support responsible
operators but sets out to offer adequate protections to our local community.

Integral to this has been the analysis of gambling related harm which informs Section
3 of this policy. The analysis explored local area-based vulnerability to gambling
related harm and, as such, provided both context to this policy and a ‘local area
profile’. This enables consideration to be given to local issues that must be
addressed by local operators and to the extent to which any further development of a
gambling offer within the borough may be appropriate.

Section 3 of this policy sets out the considerations this Authority will go through in
determining gambling premises licences. All new and current operators must have
regard to this section when compiling local risk assessments and should make this
section their starting point when absorbing the content of this policy.

Before this, the policy opens with:a more general introduction to Barking and
Dagenham (Section 1), followed by detail on the principles this Authority will rely on
in fulfilling its licensing responsibilities (section 2).

Sections 4 (premises:licences) and 5 (other consents) go on to set out in some
detail, the steps that this and other responsible authorities would wish to see given
appropriate consideration within risk assessments and operating schedules. It is
intended to reflect and enhance industry good practice. This section is also intended
to make clear certain aspects of the applications process for the benefit of all. This
includes.information on consultation, responsible authorities, interested parties and
relevant objections.

Section 6 deals with enforcement matters, establishing how this Authority and
partner service and external agencies intend to work collaboratively together, in a
fair, transparent, open and consistent manner, to provide intelligent directed
regulation.

Together, we hope to support a successful industry, which can offer enjoyable
leisure activities without harm to our young and most vulnerable.

Page 44



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Contents Page No

Section One — Introduction 8

About Barking & Dagenham
Vision and priorities
Map of the borough

Section Two — Purpose and Scope of the Policy 1

The aim of this policy

Local authority functions

The licensing objectives

Statutory Aim to permit gambling
Local authority discretion

Limits on local authority discretion
Other considerations
Consideration of planning permission and building.regulations
Human Rights Act 1998
Exchange of information

Scheme of delegation

Section Three — Local Area Profile 18

Background

The local area profile

How applications for premises licences will be assessed

Factors it is likely the.local'authority will take into account in determining
applications

Conditions

Conditions that may not be attached to premises licences by licensing
authorities

Compliance with Commission licence conditions and codes of practice

Section Four — Premises Licences 24

Types of premises licences

Applications

Responsible authorities

Body designated as competent to advise on the protection of children from
harm

Interested parties

Definition of premises and split premises

Multi-activity premises

Page 45



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e Provisional statements and applications for premises licences requiring works
or right to occupy

e The first licensing objective - Preventing gambling from being a source of
crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to
support crime

e The second licensing objective - Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair
and open way

e The third licensing objective - Protecting children and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling
- Protecting children
- Protecting vulnerable people
- Location

e Access to premises by children and young people

e Think 21

e Restriction of advertising so that gambling products are notaimed at or are,
particularly attractive to children

e Casinos
e Bingo
e Betting

e Track betting

e Adult gaming centres

e Licensed family entertainment centres
e Premises licence review

Section Five — Other Consents 43
¢ Unlicensed family entertainment centres
e (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits
e Temporary use notices
e Occasional use:notices
e Prize gaming permits
e Gaming machines
e Premises licensed to sell alcohol
e Prize gaming and prize gaming permits
e Club gaming and club machine permits

Section Six — Small Society Lotteries 49

Section Seven - Enforcement 51
e (Good practice in regulation
e Enforcement policy

Figure 1 — Map of Barking and Dagenham 10

Page 46



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026
Table 1 — Delegation of functions and responsibilities 17
Appendix A — List of Contacts 53
Appendix B — Persons who were Consulted in the Preparation of this Policy 54
Appendix C — Mandatory & Default Licence Conditions 56
Appendix D — Local Area Profile 60
Appendix E - References 88

Page 47



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section One - Introduction

About Barking and Dagenham

1.

The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham is located at heart of the
Thames Gateway, just a 15-minute train journey from central London. The
borough borders the London Boroughs of Newham, Redbridge and Havering with
Greenwich and Bexley to the south of the Thames. The borough’s three main
towns are Barking, Chadwell Heath and Dagenham.

The Office for National Statistics most recent population estimates from the 2021
Census estimated Barking and Dagenham’s population at 218,900 residents, an
increase of 17.7% since the previous census in 2011. It has a young.population
with an estimated 53,700 children (persons aged between 0-and-15), the highest
proportion in London and the UK. Some 145,900 people-are of working age,
which is 67% of the population and 19,000 people are of retirement age (65 and
over) reflecting 9% of the population®.

Barking and Dagenham also has a diverse, multi-cultural community. The
borough’s Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) population represents 67.1% of the
total population. Nigeria is the most common birthplace of residents from outside
of the UK followed by India and Pakistan?.

Barking and Dagenham has its challenges. Both male and female healthy life
expectancy (58.1 and 60.1 respectively) are below the London average. The
numbers of people who have-no-qualifications (11.9%); who are unemployed
(6.8%); and who are Universal Credit claimants (9.3%) are all above the London
averages.

However; with a proud history of manufacturing, industrial excellence and a
strategiclocation linking it to major markets in the South-East (and on to Europe),
Barking and-Dagenham has real potential and aspires to become a destination of
choice, where people stay and feel welcome.

Barking and Dagenham is at the heart of London’s eastward growth, attracting
developers and investors to the most affordable and accessible opportunities in
the whole of the Southeast.

With 400 hectares of development land, we plan to provide 50,000 high quality
new homes and 20,000 new jobs within the next 20 years.

123 | BBD Key demographic facts 2022

Page 48



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

8. With its excellent transport links, Barking and Dagenham is already one of
London’s best-connected boroughs. Connections are set to improve further with
new transport links created or in the pipeline, all intended to support the capital’s
eastward growth. This includes:

Crossrail started operating from Chadwell Heath in 2022

In 2022, the London Overground was extended to Barking Riverside
A new C2C station planned at Beam Park

Improvements to the A13

A new River Thames crossing serving east London is in operation.

9. As alegacy from Barking and Dagenham'’s involvement as a host borough in the
London Olympics in 2012, there has been significant investment.in leisure,
recreational and sporting facilities. The Council has agreements in place with
Hackman Capital Partners to build London’s largest film and TV production
centre In Dagenham with additional studios on a second site in‘Barking.

10. The borough has an incredible 530 hectares of green belt land, plus 25 parks and
open spaces and tree lined streets.

11.A map of the geographic area comprising Barking and Dagenham is shown in
Figure 1 on the following page.

The Borough Manifesto and Corporate Plan

12.The Borough Manifesto sets out the long-term, 20-year vision for the future of

Barking and Dagenham. It.describes how the council, our partners and the whole
community are working together in order to realise our shared vision of a more
powerful, resilient,'connected community; ‘one borough; one community; no-one
left behind’.

13.The council’s approach to achieving this vision is set out in The Corporate Plan.
This describes our approach to the work we do with residents every day and
explains ourfour key strategic priorities:

Inclusive growth — Harnessing the growth potential that arises from our
people, our land and our location in ways that protect the environment and
enhance prosperity, wellbeing and participation for all residents.

Participation and engagement — Empowering residents by enabling greater
participation in the community and in public services.

Prevention, independence and resilience — Children, families and adults in
Barking and Dagenham living safe, happy, healthy and independent lives.

Well-run organisation — Focusing on the efficient and effective operation of
the Council itself.

Page 49


https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/borough-manifesto
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/the-corporate-plan-and-performance-framework

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Figure 1 — Map of Barking and Dagenham

10

Page 50



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section Two - Purpose and Scope of this Policy

The Aim of the Policy

14.The aim of this policy is -

e To inform licence applicants how this Authority will make licensing
decisions and how licensed premises are likely to be able to operate within
its area

e To set out how the Authority intends to support responsible operators and
take effective actions against irresponsible operators

e To inform local residents, business and licensed premises users, of the
protections afforded to the local community within the Act and by this
Authority

e To support licensing decisions that may be challenged in-a-court of law.

e To reinforce to elected members on the Licensing and Regulatory Board,
the powers available to the local authority as licensing authority

e Setting and collecting fees

Local Authority Functions

15.Under the Gambling Act 2005, this Authority is responsible for local gambling
regulation. This statement of policy deals.with.the range of regulatory functions
that fall to this Authority. These are —

e Licensing premises for gambling activities

e Considering notices given for the temporary use of premises for gambling

e Granting permits for gaming and gaming machines in clubs and miners’
welfare institutes

e Regulating gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises

e Granting permits to family entertainment centres (FEC) for the use of
certain lower stake gaming machines

e _Granting permits for prize gaming

e . Considering occasional use notices of betting at tracks

e Registering small society lotteries that fall below certain thresholds

The Licensing Objectives

16. While carrying out its functions under the Act, particularly in relation to premises
licences, temporary use notices and some permits, this Authority must have
regard to the licensing objectives, as set out in section 1 of the Act. These are —

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime
e Ensuring gambling is conducted in fair and open way

11
Page 51



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e Protecting children and other vulnerable people from harm or from being
exploited by gambling

17.Licensing authorities have a duty to promote the licensing objectives, and we
expect gambling business to deliver them.

Statutory Aim to permit gambling

18.In exercising its functions under the Act, s.153 states that licensing authorities
shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling, in so far as it thinks it:

e In accordance with any code of practice under s24

e In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission
under s.25

e Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.(subject to the above)
and

e In accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy

19.The effect of this is that both the Commission and licensing authorities must
approach their functions in a way that seeks to regulate gambling by using their
powers, for example, to attach conditions to.licences, to moderate its impact on
the licensing objectives rather than by starting out to prevent it altogether.

Licensing authority discretion

20. Within this, licensing authorities have discretion to regulate the local provision of
gambling and the Act gives wide-ranging powers to do so. Those include the
power:

e To issue a statement of licensing policy, setting expectations about how
gambling will'be regulated in the local area

e To grant, refuse and attach conditions to premises licences

o To review premises licences and attach conditions or revoke them as a
result

Limits on Local Authority Discretion

21.However, licensing authorities are subject to some specific constraints in
exercising their functions. A licensing authority has no discretion to grant a
premises licence where that would mean taking a course of action which it did not
think accorded with the Guidance issued by the Commission, any relevant
Commission code of practice, the licensing objectives or the licensing authority’s
own statement of policy.

12
Page 52



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

22.In addition, the Act makes specific references to factors that must not be
considered by a licensing authority in exercising its functions under s.153
e The expected demand for facilities (s.153(2))
o Whether the application is to be permitted in accordance with law relating
to planning or building (s.210(1))

23. Additionally, licensing authorities should not turn down applications for premises
licences where relevant objections can be dealt with through the use of
conditions.

The statement of gambling licensing policy

24. Gambling Commission Guidance to local licensing authorities establishes that the
statement of licensing policy forms a very important part of the architecture of
local gambling regulation, and it is expected that licensing.authorities will use it to
set out the local issues, priorities and risks that inform and-underpin its approach
to local regulation.

25.1t is the primary vehicle for setting out the licensing authority’s approach to
regulation having taken into account local circumstances. It ensures that
operators have sufficient awareness and understanding of the licensing
authority’s requirements and approach, including its ‘view on local risks’ to help
them comply with local gambling regulation.

The assessment of local area vulnerability to gambling related harm

26.Accordingly, the Council.has conducted an assessment of local area vulnerability
to gambling related harm, which is intended to support and inform this authority’s
statement of licensing policy and form the local area profile. A summary is
provided as Appendix:D to this document and introduced under section 3.

27.Both applicants and existing licensed operators are directed to this document
when referring to this policy and when updating their own local area risk
assessments.

Local risk assessments

28.To improve the exchange of information between licensing authorities and
operators, the Commission introduced Social Responsibility code provisions that
require operators of premises-based businesses to conduct local risk-
assessments and an ordinary code provision that says licensees should share
their risk assessments with licensing authorities in certain circumstances.

13
Page 53



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Engagement

29. This authority encourages early active engagement with local operators to an
open and constructive partnership which, in turn, can improve confidence, reduce
regulatory costs and mitigate risks to the licensing objectives. Such engagement
can facilitate an open and constructive partnership which, in turn, can improve
compliance and reduce costs.

30. 1t is noted also that the authority is entitled to request such information from
operators as may be required to make effective licensing decisions.

Other considerations

31.Licensing authorities should regulate gambling in the public interest.

32.While this statement of policy sets out a general approach-to the exercise of
functions under the Act, it does not override the right of any person to make an
application and have that application considered on its.own merits. Additionally,
this statement does not seek to undermine the right of any person to make
representations on an application or to seek-a review. of a licence where provision
has been made for them to do so.

33.As far as is reasonably possible, this Authority will avoid duplication with other
regulatory regimes.

34.This Authority also understands that moral or ethical objections to gambling are
not a valid reason to reject-applications for premises licences.

Consideration of Planning Permission and Building Regulations

35.In particular, this Authority recognises that s210 of the Act prevents licensing
authorities from taking into account the likelihood of the applicant for a premises
licence obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval.

36.Equally, however, the grant of a gambling premises licence does not prejudice or
prevent any decision or action that may be appropriate under planning or building
control law.

Human Rights Act 1998

37.This Authority understands that the Secretary of State has certified that the Act is
compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. In considering
applications, and taking enforcement action under the Act, this Authority will bear
in mind that it is subject to the Human Rights Act 1998 and in particular:

14
Page 54



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e Article 1, Protocol 1 — peaceful enjoyment of possession. A licence is
considered a possession in law and people should not be deprived of their
possessions except in the public interest

e Article 6 — Right to a fair hearing

e Article 8 — Respect for private and family life. In particular, removal or
restriction of a licence may affect a person’s private life

e Article 10 — Right to freedom of expression

Exchange of information

38.S.29 of the Act enables the Commission to require information from licensing

authorities, including the manner in which the information is compiled, collated
and the form in which it is provided, providing that'it:

e Forms part of a register maintained under the Act
e Is in the possession of the licensing authority in connection with a
provision of the Act

39.S5.350 of the Act allows licensing authorities to exchange information with other

persons or bodies for use in the exercise of functions under the Act. Those
persons or bodies are listediin Schedule 6 of the Act as:

e A constable or police force

¢ An enforcement officer

¢ A licensing authority

e HMRC

e The First Tier Tribunal

e The Secretary of State

40:In"exchanging information, this Authority will act in accordance with the relevant

15

legislation and comply with the requirements of UK General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR). This Authority will also have regard to any Guidance to local
licensing authorities issued by the Commission. Where the law allows, this
Authority will agree secure mechanisms to share information with other regulators
about gambling premises to help target resources and activities and minimise
duplication.

Page 55



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Scheme of Delegation

41.Table 1 (on the following page) sets out the scheme of delegation for this
Authority.

42.The scheme of delegation is intended to support an effective and efficient
licensing process, within which non-contested matters will be granted by
authorised officers.

43.Where matters are subject of representations, officers will normally attempt to
reach an agreed negotiated outcome through our conciliation process. This is
offered to facilitate further discussion and save the time and costs associated
with a public hearing. Conciliation may be attempted up to 24 hours before a
hearing. If an agreed outcome, satisfactory to all concerned parties;.cannot be
reached then the matter will generally be determined by a sub-committee
comprising three elected members of the Council’s Licensing & Regulatory
Committee.

16
Page 56



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham

2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Table 1 — Delegation of decisions and functions

Matter to be dealt Council Licensing Sub- Officers
with Assembly | Committee

Final approval of X

three-year policy

Policy not to permit X

casinos

Fee setting (where X

appropriate)

Application for a
premises licence

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no representations
have been received or
representations
withdrawn

Application for
variation of a
premises licences

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no representations
have been received or
representations
withdrawn

Application for
transfer of a
premises licence

Where representations
have been received from
the Commission

Where no representations
have been received from
the Commission

Application for a
provisional statement

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no representations
have been received or
representations
withdrawn

Review of a
premises licence

X

Application for a club
gaming / club
machine permit

Where objections have
been made (and not
withdrawn)

Where no objections have
been made / objections
have not been withdrawn

Cancellation of a
club gaming / club
machine permit

X

Applications:for other
permits

Cancellation of
licensed premises
gaming machine
permits

Consideration of
temporary use notice

Decision to give a
counter notice to a
temporary use notice

17

Page 57




Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section Three — Local Area Profile

Background

44. The Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), version
April 2021, formalised the need for operators to consider local risks.

45. Specifically, Social Responsibility Code 10.1.1 requires all applicants for licences
and current premises licence holders to assess the risks to the licensing
objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises,
and to have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks.
When carrying out their risk assessments, licensees are required to take.into
account any relevant matters identified in the licensing authority’s. statement of

policy.

46.The risk assessment should also be updated:
e When applying for a variation of the premises‘licence
e To take account of significant changes in‘local circumstances, including
those identified in this Authority’s statement of policy
e When there are significant changes at the licensee’s premises that may
affect how local risks are managed

The local area profile

47.As has been recognised by the Responsible Gaming Strategy Board, there is
evidence that some groups in the population may be more vulnerable to gambling
related harm. This not only applies to people on low incomes but also people who
are less able to make reasoned decisions because of poor mental health or
addiction. Children'and young people may be particularly susceptible, as their
youth and inexperience may make them more inclined to risk-taking behaviour
and less able to manage the consequences of those decisions. Statistics indicate
that some BME groups may also be vulnerable.

48.To help support applicants and licence holders to better understand their local
environment, an analysis of gambling related harm has been prepared as a ‘local
area profile’. A copy of the document is provided at Appendix D. By drawing on
relevant and reliable published socio-economic and public health data sets
together with local police data concerning anti-social behaviour, the local area
profile uses spatial analysis techniques to provide a model of area-based
vulnerability to gambling related harm across the borough.

49.Both current operators and potential new operators to the borough are asked to
consider the detail provided carefully, and to have regard to both the overall

18
Page 58



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

summary map and the individual mapping provided in respect of each relevant
data set.

50. The general introduction to Barking and Dagenham provided in Section One of
this policy demonstrates that this borough is an improving borough. However, as
can be readily seen from the analysis provided under the local area profile, this
Council’s area compares poorly with its neighbours under the Index of Multiple
Deprivation (IMD) 2019.

51.The assessment of the 37 separate indicators that make up the IMD indicates
this borough is subject to widespread deprivation to which gambling related.harm
contributes.

52.This position gives rise to serious concerns of the impact of any further increase
in the number of gambling premises may have for the most vulnerable and ‘at
risk’ areas of the borough. This Authority considers that itis necessary to seek to
strictly control the number of facilities for gambling in areas where its most
vulnerable residents may be placed at increasing risk, and in line with the duty, to
aim to permit gambling insofar as it is reasonably.consistent with the pursuit of
the licensing objectives. All areas shown within the local area profile as being at
high overall risk of gambling related harm, are generally considered inappropriate
for further gambling establishments, which would tend to raise the risk of
gambling related harm to vulnerable people living in those areas. Operators are
asked to consider very carefully. whether seeking to locate new premises or
relocating existing premises within.these areas would be consistent with the
licensing objectives.

53.Wherever the facilities are proposed, operators should consider, having regard to
the individual mappingprovided, each of the specific characteristics of their local
area. Each premises’ specific risk-assessment should recognise these and
provide @appropriate proactive mitigation or control measures.

54.This Council would also recommend that operators consider the following matters
when making their risk-assessment.

e Information held by the licensee regarding self-exclusions and incidences
of underage gambling

e Gaming trends that may reflect benefit payments

¢ Arrangement for localised exchange of information regarding self-
exclusions and gaming trends

e The urban setting such as proximity to schools, commercial environment,
factors affecting footfall

19
Page 59



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

The range of facilities in proximity to the licensed premises such as other
gambling outlets, banks, post offices, refreshment and entertainment type
facilities

Known problems in the area such as problems arising from street
drinkers, youths participating in anti-social behaviour, drug dealing
activities, or other street related disorder.

It is recommended that those preparing the local risk assessment seek
the views of staff working in the premises, they may well possess
knowledge based on their daily presence in the locality and may also be
local residents with detailed local knowledge. Experience shows that shop
staff, when asked to read the completed risk assessment often do not
recognise the description of the area portrayed within the. risk
assessment.

55.The local area profile is intended to help facilitate constructive engagement

between operators and licensees and a more co-ordinated.response to local
risks. The local area profile will be updated from time to.time to ensure that the
information contained within is current and relevant.

56.Licensees are required to share their risk assessment with the Authority when

applying for a premises licence or for.a variation of a licence, or otherwise at the
request of the Authority, for instance during the course of a premises inspection
conducted by authorised officers. This Authority asks that a copy of the relevant
risk-assessment is kept available on the premises.

How applications for premises licences will be assessed

(57) In exercisinggits functions under Part 8 of the Act in relation to premises licences

the licensing‘authority will aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so

far as it considers it:

(a) inacecerdance with any relevant code of practice under section 24,

(b) in aecordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under

section 25,

(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a)

and (b)), and

(d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349

(subject to the preceding paragraphs (a) to (c)).

Subject to the particular statutory requirements set out in section 166 of the Act in
relation to casino licences, the authority will also have regard to the statutory

20
Page 60



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

requirement that in determining whether to grant a premises licence it may not
have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to
provide.

57.While it will continue to be the case that each application will be considered upon
its own merits with all relevant matters — including, as indicated, the requirement
to ‘aim to permit gambling’ where to do so is reasonably consistent with e.g. the
licensing objectives — see paragraph 16 above - taken into account, this Authority
will expect that each applicant for a licence will:

e Have had regard to the content of the local area profile and to the
guidance and best practice advice provided within this document.

e Have engaged in constructive discussion with the appropriate relevant
responsible authorities where risks and concerns are raised

¢ Be able to demonstrate that the risks raised within the local area profile,
this policy and through representations have been adequately addressed
by submitted operating schedules

e To be reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives

58. This Authority may require additional information where appropriate.

Factors it is likely the local authority will take into account in determining
applications

59.In considering applications for new licences, variations to existing licences and
licence reviews, this Authority. will be likely to take into account some or all of the
following matters:
e The type of premises
e The location of the premises
e The proposed or current hours of operation of the premises
e The configuration and layout of the premises
¢ “The nature of the local area, and the implications for the risk of gambling
related harm, including where appropriate the recorded levels and types of
crime and/or the levels of deprivation
¢ . The extent to which the risk-assessment provided by the operator
acknowledges and proactively deals with local concerns as raised under
the local area profile contained within this policy
e Matters relating to children and young people
e Matters relating to vulnerable adults
e The level of control measures proposed
e Whether the application establishes high levels of management
e The compliance history of the premises management, if current
e The views of the responsible authorities

21
Page 61



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

The views of interested parties

60. This list is not exhaustive. Other relevant information will be considered,
determined on a case-by-case basis.

Conditions

61.All licences granted are subject to the mandatory and default conditions provided
for by law. Where there are risks associated with a specific premises or class of
premises, the licensing authority may consider it necessary to attach additional
conditions.

62.Conditions may be attached to premises licences in a number of ways:

Mandatory conditions established through the Act or secondary
regulations

Default conditions, which may be imposed upon a licence by the licensing
authority under s.168 of the Act

Conditions imposed upon licences by thelocal licensing authority under its
discretion

63. Where its discretion has been engaged throughthe representations process, this
Authority will impose conditions where it considers that it is necessary to do so to
address relevant local circumstances. Conditions imposed by this Authority will
be proportionate to the circumstances they are seeking to address. In particular,
conditions will be:

Relevant to the need.to. make a proposed building suitable as a gambling
facility

Directly related to the premises (including the locality and any identified
local risks) and.the type of licence applied for

Fairly andreasonably related to the scale and type of premises
Within.the ability of the operator to comply

Enforceable

Reasonable in all other respects

Conditions that may not be attached to premises licences by licensing
authorities

64.This Authority notes that the Act sets out certain matters that may not be the
subject of conditions.

22

S.169(4) prohibits a licensing authority from imposing a condition on a
premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with an operating
licence condition

S.172(10) provides that conditions may not relate to gaming machine
categories, numbers, or method of operation

Page 62



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e S.170 provides that membership of a club or body cannot be required by
attaching a condition to a premises licence

e S.171 prevents any licensing authority imposing conditions in relation to
stakes, fees, winnings, or prizes.

Compliance with Commission Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice

65. In considering the matter of conditioning of licences this Authority is aware of the
content of the current version of the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes
of Practice (dated 31 October 2021). These may be viewed in full by visiting
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/le€p

66. The Commission has the power to issue two types of code of practice. The first is
a social responsibility (SR) code. A SR code must be followed and has the force
of a licence condition. The Commission may also issue ordinary codes (OC)
which are intended to set out best industry practice. They are not mandatory, but
operators are expected to follow them unless they have alternative arrangements
in place that they can demonstrate are equally effective.

67.The licence conditions and codes of practice apply.to all new and existing
licences, including any holder of a personal.or.operating licence issued under the
Gambling Act 2005.

23
Page 63


https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section Four — Premises licences

68. This policy statement does not set out to explain the process and procedure for
applying for a premises licence, variation or transfer. Advice on such can be
obtained directly from the licensing service (see contact details in appendix A).
However, this policy statement does set out for the benefit of applicants and all
other interested parties, some important matters that this Authority will have
regard to when determining applications.

Types of premises licences

69. In accordance with s.150 of the Act, premises licences can authorise the
provision of facilities on:

Casino premises

Bingo premises

Betting premises, including tracks
Adult gaming centre (AGC)

Family entertainment centres (FEC)

Applications

70. Applications for premises licences and club premises certificates must be made
on the prescribed form (available from
https://www.Ibbd.gov.uk/business/ligenses-and-permits/gambling-licences-and-
permits/gambling-premises-licenceloverview/ ) and accompanied by:

The prescribed fee

The prescribed.documents, namely a plan of the premises (ideally at 1:100
scale, unless otherwise agreed with the Authority)

Notwithstanding the requirements of The Gambling Act 2005 (Premises
Licences and Provisional Statements) Regulation 2007, relating to the
content.of submitted plans, this authority believes that in order to be
satisfied that the requirements of S.153 are being met, especially social
responsibility codes more detail is required, with the locations of gaming
machines and self-service betting terminals marked on the plan. This view
is supported in the national guidance issued by the Gambling Commission
(S.7.46). Accordingly, for any new premises licence application or variation
application this level of detail will be required. Any plan submitted without
this information will be returned to be corrected, thus potentially delaying
the issue of any licence;

A copy of the operator’s local area risk-assessment

71.Applications must be completed in full and signed and dated. If an application is
submitted incomplete, it will not be processed.

24

Page 64


https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/business/licenses-and-permits/gambling-licences-and-permits/gambling-premises-licence/overview/
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/business/licenses-and-permits/gambling-licences-and-permits/gambling-premises-licence/overview/

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

72.Similarly, a licence application, and any licence subsequently issued, is not valid
if the relevant ‘application notices’ have not been made. These include

e A notice placed outside the premises for 28 consecutive days in a place
where it can be easily seen and read by passers by

e A public notice placed in a newspaper or newsletter of local relevance on
at least one occasion within ten days of the application being made

¢ Notice provided to all of the relevant responsible authorities, including the
Commission, with seven days of the application being made.

73.A licence to use a premises for gambling should only be issued in relation to
premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be
used for gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of the
building or alterations required before the premises are brought into use. Equally,
licences should only be issued where they are expected to be used for the
gambling activity named on the licence.

74.In cases where an operator wishes to apply for a licence in respect of a premises
where construction is not yet completed, or/needs alteration, or where the
operator does not have the right to occupy.them, a provisional statement should
be sought.

Responsible authorities

75.Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be notified of applications
and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing authority in relation
to applications for, and in relation to, premises licences.

76.S.157 of the Act identifies the bodies that are to be treated as responsible
authorities. They.are:

¢ . The'licensing authority in whose area the premises is wholly or partly
situated

e The Gambling Commission

¢ The Chief Officer of Police

e The fire and rescue authority

e The local planning authority

e The council’s environmental health service

e A body designated in writing by the licensing authority, as competent to
advise about the protection of children from harm

e HM Revenue and Customs

e Any other person prescribed by the Secretary of State

25
Page 65



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Body designated as competent to advise on the protection of children from

harm

77.This Authority has determined the local Safeguarding Children Board as the body

competent to advise on the protection of children from harm.

78.The principles that this Authority has applied in designating the competent body

The need for the body to be responsible for the area we cover

The need for the body to be able to provide professional expert opinion
The need to ensure accountability, through being answerable to elected
members rather than any particular interest group

Interested parties

79.S.158 of the Act defines interested parties. To accept a representation from an

interested party, this Authority must take the view that'the person:

Lives sufficiently close to the premisesio be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities

Has business interests that might.be affected by the authorised activities
Represents persons in either of these two groups

80.When determining whether a person ‘lives sufficiently close to the premises’ this

Authority will take the following factors into account:

The size of the premises

The nature of the premises

The distance of the premises from the location of the person making the
representation

The potential impact of the premises such as the number of customers,
routes likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment

The circumstances of the person who lives close to the premises. This is
not their personal characteristics, but their interests which may be relevant
to the distance from the premises

81.When determining whether a person has business interests that might be

26

affected by the authorised activities this Authority will recognise that the ‘demand
test’ from previous legislation does not apply and, therefore, that view that an
application provides competition to an existing local business will not be
considered sufficient reason for a representation. In establishing that a relevant
business is likely to be affected, factors that are likely to be relevant include:

Page 66



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e The size of the premises

e The ‘catchment’ area of the premises, that is, how far people travel to visit
the premises

¢ Whether the person making the representation has business interests in
that catchment area that might be affected

82.Interested parties can be people who are democratically elected, such as
councillors and MPs. Other representatives might include bodies such as trade
associations, trade unions and residents’ and tenants’ associations. A school
head or governor might act in the interests of pupils or parents and a community
group might represent vulnerable people living near to the proposed.premises.

83. Aside from democratically elected persons, this Authority will satisfy itself on a
case-by-case basis that a person does represent interested parties and will
request written evidence to support this where necessary. A letter from the
interested person being represented would be sufficient.

84.This Authority will only consider ‘relevant’ representations, i.e. representations
that relate to the licensing objectives or-to issues that are raised within this
statement of policy. Any representation that is considered ‘frivolous’ or
‘vexatious’ may be disregarded. Relevant considerations in interpreting these
phrases may include:

e Who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making
representations that are .not relevant

e Whether or not.it raises a ‘relevant’ issue

e Whether it raises issues that are specifically to do with the premises that
are the subject of the application under consideration

Definition of premises & split premises

85. This Authority notes that the Act defines ‘premises’ as including ‘any place’ and
that s.152 of the Act prevents more than one premises licence applying to any
place.

86. It is understood that there is no reason, in principle, why a single building could
not be subject to more than one premises licence, provided the licences are
issued in respect of different parts of a building that can be reasonably regarded
as being different premises. However, this Authority will give very close attention
to any application which proposes to sub-divide a single building or plot.

87.Whether different parts of premises can properly be regarded as being separate

premises will depend on the circumstances. The location of the premises will

27
Page 67



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

88.

89.

clearly be an important consideration and the suitability of the proposed division
is likely to be a matter for discussion.

This Authority does not consider that areas of a building that are artificially or
temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable partitions, can properly
be regarded as different premises. If the premises are located within a larger
venue, this Authority will require a plan of the venue on which the premises
should be identified as a separate unit.

Each application will be considered upon its own merits. However, in cases
where this Authority considers that a proposal is intended to create separate
premises with additional gaming machine entitlement and this impacts upon the
licensing objectives, then this Authority will not automatically grant.a licence even
where the mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are
observed.

Multi-activity premises

90. This Authority will also take particular care in considering applications for multiple

91

28

premises for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for
other (non-gambling) purposes. In particular,

e Premises must be configured so that.children are not invited to participate
in, have accidental access to or closely observe gambling where they are
prohibited from participating

e Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more
premises licences should be separate and identifiable so that the
separation of different premises is not compromised and people do not
‘drift’ into a gambling area. In this context it should normally be possible to
access the premises without going through another licensed premises or
premises with a permit

e Customers should be able to participate in the activity named on the
premises licence

.In"determining whether two or more proposed premises are truly separate, this

Authority will consider factors which could assist in making their decision,
including

e Is a separate registration for business rates in place for the premises?

e Are the premises' neighbouring premises owned by the same person or
someone else?

e Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a public
passageway?

e Can the premises only be accessed from any other gambling premises?

Page 68



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Provisional statements and applications for premises licences requiring works
or right to occupy
92. A premises licence, once it comes into effect, authorises premises to be used for
gambling. Accordingly, a licence to use premises for gambling will only be issued
in relation to premises that the Authority can be satisfied are going to be used for
gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of building or
alterations required before the premises are brought into use. S204 of the Act
provides for potential operators to apply for a provisional statement that he / she
e Expects to be constructed
e Expects to be altered; or
e Expects to acquire a right to occupy.

93.However, case law provides that operators may apply for a full premises licence
in respect of premises which have still to be constructed or altered and licensing
authorities are required to determine such applications on their.merits. In such
cases, this Authority will consider such applications.in two stages:

o Firstly, whether as a matter of substance after applying the principles in
s153 of the Act?, the premises ought to be permitted to be used for
gambling

e Secondly, in deciding whether or not.to grant the application this Authority
will need to consider if appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater
for the situation that the premises are not yet in the state in which they
ought to be before gambling takes place. This Authority is entitled to
consider that it is appropriate to grant a licence subject to conditions, but it
is not obliged to grant:such a licence.

Standards of management

94. This Authority expects all licensed operators to strive to achieve the highest
standards. of premises management across all facilities for gaming and betting
within Barking and Dagenham.

3 Which provides:

“153\Principles‘to be applied

(1) In exercising their functions under this Part a licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of
premises for gambling in so far as the authority think it—

(a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24,

(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under section 25,

(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a) and (b)), and

(d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349 (subject to
paragraphs (a) to (c)).

(2) In determining whether to grant a premises licence a licensing authority may not have regard to
the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to provide.

(3) This section is subject to section 166.”

29
Page 69



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

95.To this end, premises management are expected to have an excellent and in-
depth knowledge of relevant gambling law and regulations and be able to
demonstrate a full understanding of the importance of social responsibility
provisions and the need to provide adequate protection of children and
vulnerable people.

96. All customer-facing staff in licensed premises should also have sufficient
understanding and knowledge to recognise the indicators of problem gambling
and take appropriate steps to deal with this; and to promote socially responsible
gaming.

97.As working in gambling establishments can also carry risks for the staff.involved,
it is expected that adequate staffing provision is maintained at all times‘and that
incidents of lone working especially late at night, should beminimised. All
working practices should be covered by appropriate risk-assessments.

98. Additionally, a full record of all incidents, actions and interventions should be
maintained and made available for inspection at the premises. This Authority
would also ask that operators support the Council and partner authorities by
displaying healthy lifestyle information regarding such as alcohol consumption,
local smoking cessation services and local support for mental health problems
and debt advice, as and when this.is made available.

The first licensing objective — Preventing gambling from being a source of
crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to
support crime

99. This Authority recognises that the Commission takes a lead role in preventing
gambling.from being a source of crime and will have investigated issues of
suitability under the process for an Operators’ Licence.

100+ However, the location of a premises is an important factor when determining a
premises licence application and so this Authority will pay particular attention to
thelocation of gambling premises and the local level of crime. Where an area has
high levels of organised crime, careful consideration will be given to whether it is
appropriate for gambling premises to be located there and, if so, what conditions
may be necessary to minimise the risk of crime.

101. Operators should also be aware of and take into account, issues of lower-
level crime and anti-social behaviour.

102. Licensees will be expected to demonstrate that they have given careful and
adequate consideration to this objective. In considering whether to grant a

30
Page 70



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

premises licence, this Authority will also give appropriate consideration to issues
such as:

e The configuration, design, and layout of the premises, paying particular
attention to steps taken to ‘design out’ crime

e The arrangements in place to control access

e Security arrangements within the premises, including whether CCTV is
installed (or intended) and, if so, the standard of the CCTV and the
positioning of cash registers

e Training provided to staff around crime prevention measures

e The level of staff intended to be provided at the premises, including
whether door supervisors are employed

e The arrangements for age verification checks

e The provision of adequate sanitary accommodation

e Steps proposed to be taken to redress the recurrence of any historical
crime and disorder issues

e Steps proposed to prevent anti-social behaviour associated with the
premises, such as street drinking, litter, and obstruction of the highway

e The likelihood of any violence, public-disorder; or policing problems if the
licence is granted

103. The above list is not exhaustive.' Reference will also be had to issues raised
by the local area profile detailed in'section three of this policy.

104. This Authority notes the distinction between disorder and nuisance in the case
of gambling premises and that disorder is intended to mean activity that is more
serious and disruptive than'mere nuisance. Factors to consider in determining
whether a disturbance was serious enough to constitute disorder would include
whether police assistance was required and how threatening the behaviour was
to those who could.see or hear it.

The second licensing objective — Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair
and open way

105. This Authority notes that the Commission does not expect licensing
authorities to be dealing with issues of fairness and openness frequently, as
these matters are likely to be subject to the provisions of the Commission-issued
operator and personal licences.

106. However, any suspicion raised that gambling is not being conducted in a fair
and open way will be brought to the attention of the Commission for appropriate
action. Similarly, any concerns relating to fair trading legislation will be brought to
the attention of Trading Standards.

31
Page 71



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

The third licensing objective — Protecting children and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling

(a) Protecting children

107. The third licensing objective refers to protecting children from being harmed or
exploited by gambling. This generally means preventing children from taking part
in gambling and for there to be restrictions on advertising so that gambling
products are not aimed at children in such a way that makes them attractive
(excepting category D machines).

108. Licensees and applicants will be expected to demonstrate that they have
given careful and appropriate consideration to measures intended to protect
children. In considering whether to grant a premises licence, this Authority will
give appropriate consideration to issues such as:

e The location and supervision of entrances

e Security measures at the premises including the installation and
maintenance of CCTV

e The provision of licensed door supervisors

e Arrangements for age verification

e Arrangements for segregation between gaming and non-gaming areas in
premises where children are permitted

e Arrangements for supervision of machine areas in premises where
children are permitted

e The provision of signage and notices

109. With limited exceptions, however, the intention of the Act is that children and
young persons should not be permitted to gamble and should be prevented from
entering premises which are adult-only environments. This Authority will consider
whether staff will be able to adequately supervise the gambling premises to
ensure this.

110. This Authority will also consider whether the structure or layout and
configuration of a premises either inhibits adequate supervision of the premises
or prohibits it. In such cases, an applicant for a licence should consider what
changes are or might be required to mitigate this. Such changes might include:

e The positioning or relocation of staff or CCTV to enable direct lines of sight
of entrances / machines
e The use of floor walkers to monitor use of machines

32
Page 72



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

111. The Commission’s general licence conditions and associated codes of
practice include requirements as part of Operating Licences that licensees must
have and put into effect social responsibility policies and procedures designed to
prevent under-age gambling and monitor the effectiveness of these.

112. In order that this Authority may make a proper informed judgement as to the
effectiveness of these policies and procedures, it is requested that copies of the
relevant documentation are submitted for consideration as part of any application
for a new or varied premises licences. These will be considered upon their
individual merits.

(b) Protecting vulnerable adults

113. The Act does not seek to prohibit groups of adults fromgambling in the same
way that it does children.

114. While the Commission does not seek to define ‘vulnerable adults’ it does, for
regulatory purposes, assume that this group includes people who may gamble
more than they want to; people who gamble beyond their means; and people who
may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to
mental health needs, learning disability or substance misuse relating to alcohol or
drugs.

115. The Commission’s general licence conditions and associated codes of
practice include requirements as part of Operating Licences that licensees must
have and put into effectpolicies and procedures that promote socially responsible
gambling. In particular, the codes of practice place responsibilities on licensees

e To make information readily available to customers on how to gamble
responsibly‘and how to access information about, and in respect of,
problem gambling

e For customer interaction where they have a concern that a customer’s
behaviour may indicate problem gambling

e To participate in the national multi-operator self-exclusion scheme

e To take all reasonable steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an
individual who has entered a self-exclusion agreement from participating in
gambling

e To take all reasonable steps to prevent any marketing material being sent
to a self-excluded customer

116. In order that this Authority may make a proper informed judgement as to the
effectiveness of these policies and procedures, it is requested that copies of the
relevant documentation are submitted for consideration as part of any application

33
Page 73



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

for a new or varied premises licences. These will be considered upon their
individual merits.

117. This Authority will also wish to understand the steps taken by the applicant to
monitor the effectiveness of these policies and procedures.

(c) Location

118. Location of the premises has already been raised within this policy under the
first licensing objective. However, location carries broader considerations that can
potentially impact on each of the licensing objectives and beyond. That said this
Authority recognises that betting shops have always been situated in areas of
high population, where there are likely to be high numbers of children-nearby,
and this is not of itself a problem where appropriate steps have been taken to
minimise the risk of children being attracted to gambling.

119. This Authority will give careful consideration to any-application in respect of
premises that located in close proximity to

e Schools

e Parks, playgrounds and open spaces

e Stations and transport-hubs where large numbers of children may be
expected to congregate

e Leisure facilities, youth clubs.and community centres

e Hostels or other accommodation for vulnerable children, young persons
and adults

e Proximity of premises which may be frequented by vulnerable people such
as hospitals, residential care homes, medical facilities, doctor’s surgeries,
council housing offices, addiction clinics or help centres, places where
alcohol or drug dependant people may congregate, etc.

e Faith premises and places of public worship (including churches, temples,
mosques and other), which may tend to be frequented by children and/or
vulnerable people.

e Areas that are prone to issues of youths congregating, including (but not
limited to) for the purposes of participating in anti-social behaviour,
activities such as graffiti / tagging, underage drinking etc.

e Recorded instances of attempted underage gambling

Access to premises by children and young persons

34
Page 74



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

120. The Act restricts the circumstances under which children and young people
may take participate in gambling or be upon premises where gambling takes
place as follows:

Casinos are not permitted to admit anyone under 18;

Betting shops are not permitted to admit anyone under 18;

Bingo clubs may admit those under 18 but must have policies to ensure
that they do not play bingo, or play category B or C machines that are
restricted to those over 18;

Adult gaming centres are not permitted to admit those under 18;

Family entertainment centres and premises with a liquor licences (for
example pubs) can admit under 18s, but they must not play category C
machines which are restricted to those over 18;

Clubs with a club premises certificate can admit under 18s, but they must
have policies to ensure those under 18 do not play machines other than
category D machines; and

All tracks can admit under 18s, but they may only have access to gambling
areas on days where races or other sporting events are taking place, or are
expected to take place.

121. This Authority will expect applicants to.offer their own proposals to help fulfil
the licensing objectives. However, there are a range of general controls that this
Authority together with the otherresponsible authorities would recommend:

The use of proof of age schemes;

The direct supervision of.entrances to the premises and the machine
areas;

The installation.of CCTV systems with the 31-day library of recording
maintained;

Provision.of suitable notices / signage explaining admission restrictions;
and

Setting and publicising specific opening hours.

Challenge 25

122. All premises should operate a proof of age compliance scheme. This Authority
recommends that any proof of age scheme should be based on the principles of
‘Challenge 25’ and should involve:

35

Persons appearing to staff to be under the age of 25 attempting to enter
the premises or take part in gambling activities should be required to
produce valid age identification (comprising any PASS accredited card or
passport or driving licence) before being admitted or being allowed to take
part;

Page 75



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e The reinforcement of this practice by appropriate signage displayed at the
entrance to the premises and upon the premises;

e All staff to be trained in the premises proof of age compliance scheme and
records of the training given to be retained on the premises and made
available for inspection by authorised officers;

e The use of an incident log-book to record details of all age-related
refusals. The log should be reviewed monthly by the nominated
responsible member of staff and any actions taken recorded in the book
and signed off by that member of staff. This log shall be retained on the
premises and made available for inspection by authorised officers; and

e Where a CCTV recording system is installed inside the premises,.it should
be arranged so as to monitor each entrance and exit and«the gaming
areas. A library of recordings taken by the system shall be maintained for
31 days and made available to authorised officers upon request.

Restriction of advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at or are,
particularly attractive to children

123. This Authority notes that the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice require all advertising of gambling products to be undertaken in a
socially responsible manner. Advertising of. gambling products should comply
with the advertising codes of practice issued.by the Committee of Advertising
Practice (CAP) and the Broadcast Committee of Advertising Practice (BCAP)
which apply to the form and media in.which they advertise their gambling facilities
or services. Licensees should also follow any relevant industry code of practice
on advertising, notably the.Gambling Industry Code for Socially Responsible
Advertising.

124. This authority understands that the following general principles apply to
advertising:

e Must be legal and not misleading

e Mustnot encourage irresponsible or excessive gambling;

e . Musttake care not to exploit children and other vulnerable persons in
relation to gambling activity; and

¢ .. Should not be specifically and intentionally be targeted towards people
under the age of 18 through the selection of media, style of presentation,
content or context in which they appear.

125. This Authority accepts that further conditions on this matter should not
normally be necessary, but all issues of non-compliance with the code will be
rigorously investigated and reported to the relevant authorities.

36
Page 76



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Casinos

126. S.166(1) of the Act states that a licensing authority may resolve not to issue

casino premises licence. This Authority has not passed such a resolution, but it is
aware of the power to do so. Should this Authority decide in the future to pass
such a resolution, this Statement of Policy will be updated. Any such decision
must be taken by the full Council Assembly.

Bingo

127. A holder of a bingo licence is able to offer bingo in all its forms. Children and

young persons are permitted in bingo premises but may not participate in the
bingo. As children and young persons may be present upon bingo premises,
careful consideration will be given to protection of children from harm.issues.
Social responsibility (SR) code 3.2.5(3) states that ‘licensees must ensure that
their policies and practices take account of the structure and layout of their
gambling premises in order to prevent under-age.gambling’. Where category B
or C machines are available for use, these must be separated from areas where
children and young people are allowed.

128. The Authority will need to be satisfied«that substantive facilities for non-remote

bingo can be played in any premises for,which*a Premises Licence is issued for
that purpose. In premises operating under.a bingo licence, bingo should be a
significant the-main activity with gaming machines not the sole an-ancillary offer.
To prevent a situation where a bingo premises licence is obtained primarily solely
to benefit from the gaming-machine entitlement that it provides, this Authority will
wish to satisfy itself that.bingo.is intended to be the-principal a significant activity
and can be played in any part of the premises for which such a licence may be
sought and throughout the hours of its intended operation. To this extent, where
bingo is intended to be offered by way of tablets or other similar devices, eur
expectation-is-that-consideration will be given to whether:
e All'tablets or devices shall be maintained fully charged and available for
use at-al-times
»  Whether there will shall be sufficient seating provided to enable all tablets
or devices to be played upon the premises at-one-time

129. Scrutiny will be given to any application for a new licence in respect of any

excluded area of existing premises.

130. In addition, young persons, aged 16 and 17, may be employed in bingo

37

premises provided their duties are not connected with the gaming or gaming
machines. This Authority will not grant licences unless the applicant
demonstrates how they intend to meet this licensing objective and identify
appropriate measures they will take to protect young employees.

Page 77



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Betting

131. The Act establishes a single class of licence covering betting, although there
are two types of premises that require licensing. These are for ‘off course’ betting
and track betting. Both are licensed by the local licensing authority. This section
of the policy concentrates on ‘off course’ betting that takes place other than at a
track and includes an entitlement to provide up to four gaming machines of
category B2, B3, B4, C or D, and any number of betting machines.

132. This Authority has had particular concerns over the use of the B2 Fixed Odds
Betting Terminals (FOBTSs) within betting shops. While it is appreciated that it is
permissible for a betting operator to provide solely FOBTs as their allocation of
gaming machines and that since April 2019 the maximum stake permitted-on
these machines has been reduced from £100.00 to £2.00 the thigher prize, higher
stake gaming provided still increases the risk of gambling related harm. An
applicant will in each case be expected to demonstrate that they can offer
sufficient facilities for betting alongside any gaming. machine provision.

133. Where Category B2 gaming machines Fixed-Odds BettingFerminals(FOBTs)

are provided, these gaming machines should be located within direct line sight of
the supervised counter in order to prevent.their use in connection with the
proceeds of crime or excessive use by vulnerable persons”. Information leaflets
and posters shall be provided in.close proximity to the location of any FOBTSs.
These should be aimed at customers / families / friends and provide information
on how to identify signs of problem gambling and available pathways to advice
and assistance (e.g. helpline numbers and online counselling services).

134. Where the local area profile identifies any relevant local risk of gambling
related harm, operators should consider additional protections for the vulnerable.
These could include:

¢ Removing Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) from the betting office; and
e _Restricting FOBTSs to account based play.

135.. Licensed betting premises are only permitted to offer gambling facilities
between 0700 and 2200 hours, unless the local authority has agreed an
extension of operating hours. This Authority is also concerned that longer
operating hours may attract the more vulnerable, such as those who may be
intoxicated or have gambling addictions. Consequently, this Authority is unlikely
to grant any extension of operating hours unless it is satisfied that robust
measures will be in place to protect the vulnerable.

136. Children and young persons are not permitted to enter licensed betting
premises. Social Responsibility (SR) Code 3.2.7(3) in the Licence Conditions and

38
Page 78



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Codes of Practice (LCCP) states that ‘licensees must ensure that their policies
and procedures take account of the structure and layout of their gambling
premises’ in order to prevent under-age gambling.

137. As per the Commission’s Guidance, this Authority will wish to consider
restricting the number and location of betting machines in respect of applications
for betting premises licences. The council when considering the number/ nature/
circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer will follow the
Gambling Commission's Guidance and take into account the size of the
premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines.

138. This Authority will also have regard to the local area profile set.outin section
three of this policy and to the risk-assessment compiled in response to it.

Track betting

139. S.353 of the Act defines a track as a horse racecourse, greyhound track or
other premises on any part of which a race or other.sporting event takes place or
is intended to take place.

140. Tracks may be subject to more than one premises licence, as long as each
licence applies to a specific area of the track. Children and young people are able
to enter track areas when facilities for betting are provided on days when dog
racing or horse racing takes'place. This exemption does not extend to other adult
only areas.

141. This Authority will' expect an applicant to demonstrate that they will put
suitable measures in place to ensure that children do not have access to adult-
only gaming facilities.

Adult gaming centres

142. " Adult gaming centres (AGCs) premises licences allow the holder of the
licence to make gaming machines available for use on the premises. Persons
operating an AGC must hold a gaming machines general operating licence from
the Commission and must seek a premises licence from the licensing authority.
The holder of an adult gaming centre premises licence that was issued prior to
the 13 July 2011 is entitled to make available four category B3/B4 gaming
machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines, whichever, is the
greater. An AGC premises licence granted after the 13 July 2011 may make
available for use a number of category B gaming machines not exceeding 20% of
the total number of gaming machines which are available for use on the premises
and any number of category C or D machines.

39
Page 79



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

143. Gaming machines provide a form of gambling which is attractive to children
and AGC’s will contain machines of a similar format to the Category D machines
on which children are allowed to play. However, no-one under the age of 18 is
permitted to enter an AGC and applicants must be aware of the location of and
entry to AGC’s to minimise the opportunities for children to gain access.

144. Because gaming machines provides opportunities for solitary play and
immediate pay-outs, they are more likely to encourage repetitive and excessive
play. The council in considering premises licences which include gaming
machines will have particular regard to the third licensing objective in this respect.

145. The council will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the
licensing objectives; however appropriate measures / licence conditions may
cover issues such as:

e Proof of age schemes;

e CCTV;

e Entry control system;

e Supervision of entrances/ machine areas;

e Physical separation of areas;

e Location of entry;

¢ Notices/ signage;

e Specific opening hours;

e Self-barring schemes for individuals to bar themselves from premises; and

e Provision of information leaflets/ helpline numbers for organisations such
as GamCare, National'\Gambling Helpline on 0808 8020 133 and
also www.begambleaware.org.

Licensed family entertainment centres

146. The Act creates two classes of family entertainment centre (FEC). This part of
the policy concerns licensed FECs. Unlicensed FECs are dealt with in Section 5.
Persons operating a licensed FEC must hold a ‘gaming machine general
operating licence (Family Entertainment Centre)’ from the Commission and a
premises licence from the relevant licensing authority. They are able to make
category C and D gaming machines available.

147. This Authority may only grant a permit if satisfied that the premises will be
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available.

148. Children and young persons are permitted to enter an FEC and may use
category D machines. They are not permitted to use category C machines and it
is a requirement that there must be clear segregation between the two types of
machine, so that under-18s do not have access to them. Social Responsibility

40
Page 80


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4qk7egNWKTL6mOUBMgBiETJJTDeabpyMCuxmoXmOrk0%3D&reserved=0

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

(SR) code 3.2.5(3) in the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP)
states that ‘licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures take account
of the structure and layout of their gambling premises’ in order to prevent
underage gambling. Mandatory conditions apply to FEC premises licences
regarding the way in which the area containing the category C machines should
be set out, detailed in Appendix C.

149. In determining any application for a permit this Authority will have regard to
the licensing objectives and will expect the applicant to show that there are
policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm, relating not just
from gambling but also wider child protection considerations, including the risk of
child sexual exploitation. The efficiency of such policies and procedures will be
considered on their merits. However, the Authority would anticipate these would
include measures / training for staff on:

e Appropriate action regarding suspected truanting school children on the
premises;

e Dealing with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or
children causing perceived problems on.or.around the premises; and

e Staff training on the maximum stakes and prizes.

150. SR 3.2.5(2) requires operators:to ensure that employees prevent access and
challenge children or young persons who attempt use category C machines. It is
strongly recommended that licensing authorities ensure that staffing and
supervision arrangements are in place to meet this requirement both at
application stage and.at subsequent inspections.

Premises licence reviews

151. Requests for.a review of a premises licence may be made by an interested
party or a responsible authority, in which circumstances it is for this Authority to
decide whetherto carry out a review. By virtue of s.198, an application may, but
need not, be'rejected if the licensing authority thinks that the grounds on which
the review is sought:

¢ = Are not relevant to the principles that must be applied by the licensing
authority in accordance with s.153, namely the licensing objectives, the
Commission’s codes of practice and this Guidance, or the licensing
authority’s statement of policy;

e Are frivolous;

e Are vexatious;

e ‘Will certainly not’ cause the licensing authority to revoke or suspend a
licence or to remove, amend or attach conditions on the premises licence;

41
Page 81



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e Are substantially the same as the grounds cited in a previous application
relating to the same premises; and

e Are substantially the same as representations made at the time the
application for a premises licence was considered.

152. In addition, s.200 of the Act provides that licensing authorities may initiate a
review in relation to a particular premises licence or a class of premises licence.

153. In relation to a class of premises, a licensing authority may review the use
made of premises and the arrangements that premises licence holders'have
made to comply with licence conditions

154. A licensing authority may review any matter connected with the.use made of a
premises if:

e |t has reason to suspect that premises licence conditions are not being
observed;

e The premises is operating outside of the principles set out in the licensing
authority’s statement of policy;

e There is evidence to suggest that compliance with the licensing objectives
is at risk; and

e There is any other reason which gives cause to believe that a review may
be appropriate, such as a.complaint from a third party.

155. Any formal review would normally be at the end of a process of ensuring
compliance by the operator(s) which might include an initial investigation by a
licensing authority officer and informal mediation or dispute resolution. If the
concerns are not resolved then, after a formal review, this Authority may impose
additional conditions or revoke the licence.

42
Page 82



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section 5 — Other consents

156. The Act introduces a range of permits which are granted by licensing
authorities, intended to provide a ‘light touch’ approach to low level ancillary
gambling where stakes and prizes are subject to very low limits and / or gambling is
not the main function of the premises.

157. This part of the policy considers the various permits that this Authority is
responsible for issuing. Licensing authorities may only grant or reject an application
for a permit. There is no provision for conditions to be set.

Unlicensed family entertainment centres

158. Only premises that are wholly or mainly used for making-gaming:machines
available may hold a uFEC gaming machine permit. This-Authority may only
grant a permit if satisfied that the premises will be used as‘an uFEC and if the
chief officer of the police has been consulted on the application. As a result, it is
generally not permissible for such premises to correspond to an entire shopping
centre, airport, motorway service station or similar. Typically, the machines would
be in a designated, enclosed area.

159. UFECs are able to offer category D.machines only under a gaming machine
permit. Any category D machines can be made available, although other
considerations, such as fire safety and.health and safety, may be taken into
account.

160. In determining any-application for a permit this Authority will have regard to
the licensing objectives and may ask an applicant to demonstrate;

e A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling
thatis permissible in uFECs;

e That the applicant has no relevant convictions; and

o That employees are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum
stakes and prizes.

161. The Authority will also expect the applicant to show that there are policies and
procedures in place to protect children from harm, relating not just from gambling
but also wider child protection considerations, including the risk of child sexual
exploitation. The efficiency of such policies and procedures will be considered on
their merits. However, the Authority would anticipate these would include
measures / training for staff on:

e Appropriate action regarding suspected truanting school children on the
premises; and

43
Page 83



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

e Dealing with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or
children causing perceived problems on or around the premises.

(Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits

162. Premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, may
automatically have 2 category C or D gaming machines. Operators only need to
inform the local licensing authority.

163. This Authority may remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any
particular premises in its area if:

e Provision of the machine is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of
the licensing objectives:
e Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of
s282 of the Act i.e. that
- Written notice has been provided to the:Authority
- A fee has been paid
- Any relevant code of practice issued by:the Gambling Commission
about the location and operation of the.machine has been complied
with;
e The premises are mainly used for.gaming; or
e An offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises.

164. Where an operator wishes to have more than 2 gaming machines on their
premises, a permit must be obtained. This Authority will consider each application
based on the licensingobjectives; any Guidance issued by the Commission
under s25 of the Act;.and ‘such matters as it thinks relevant’, considered on a
case-by-case basis.

165. This Authority will have particular regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling, or at risk of child
sexual exploitation. This Authority will expect the applicant to satisfy it that there
will be sufficient measures to ensure that children and young persons under 18
years do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. As a minimum this
Authority will expect that machines are situated in sight of the bar, or within the
sight of staff that are able to adequately monitor that the machines are not being
used by those under 18. Notices and signage may also assist. With regard to the
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of
information leaflets/helpline numbers for customers who may have a gambling
addiction, from organisations such as GamCare, National Gambling Helpline
on 0808 8020 133 and also www.begambleaware.org

44
Page 84


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4qk7egNWKTL6mOUBMgBiETJJTDeabpyMCuxmoXmOrk0%3D&reserved=0

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

166. The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machines.

Temporary use notices

167. A Temporary Use Notice (TUN) may be used to allow premises such as
hotels, conference centres or sporting venues to be used temporarily for
providing facilities for gambling.

168. TUNSs are controlled by s214-234 of the Act and the Gambling Act (Temporary
Use Notices) Regulations 2007 and are subject to restrictions.

169. Currently, Temporary Use Notices can only be used to permit.the provision of
facilities for equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a
single overall winner.

170. This licensing authority, in considering applications for Temporary Use
Notices, will consider whether gambling should take place, or should only take
place with modifications to the TUN. In doing so, the licensing authority will
consider:

e The suitability of the premises;

e The location of the premises, paying.particular attention to its proximity to
any schools, hostels or other sensitive premises;

e The CCTV coverage within.the-premises;

» The ability of the premises to provide sufficient staff and/or licensed door
supervisors for the notice period; and

* Whether the premisesor the holder of the operating licence have given the
council any cause for concern at previous events in relation to the
licensing objectives, the guidance issued by the Commission, the relevant
code of practice or this statement of principles.

Social orentertainment bingo

171. We have recently seen the growth of entertainment or social bingo in alcohol
licensed premises. It combines bingo games with various other forms of
entertainment — themed nights, quizzes and party games. It is normally played in
pubs and clubs on an intermittent basis — it is not played every day of the week.
The word ‘bingo’ is used somewhere in the title of the event and booking is
invariably done online in the first instance.

172. For this to fall under the category of exempt gaming in an alcohol licensed
premises without an operating licence, the following must apply:

« Bingo can only be offered within an alcohol-licensed premises.

45
Page 85



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

« No profit can be made from the bingo itself. This means they cannot charge a
fee for participating in bingo - nor can they take a cut from either the money
paid to play bingo (stakes), or from the prize amounts awarded.

e It must be possible for bingo players to gain entry to the premises without
paying an admission fee. This is because admission fees to premises where
bingo takes place are treated as participation fees i.e. profit.

« All stakes for bingo games must be returned as prizes. So, if they raise £500
in total from all bingo players, they must return the whole £500 in prizes.

o The maximum stake they can charge is £5 per person per game.

e The chances of winning a prize must be equally favourable to all players.

e The operator can’t link up the bingo games with other bingo games taking
place on a different set of premises.

e No under 18s can be allowed to play. They must have controls in place to
prevent underage gambling.

e The bingo must comply with the Code of Practice for equal chance gaming in
club and premises with an alcohol licence - this includes compliance with the
maximum stakes of £5 per person per game.

e They must notify the Commission - and may need to apply for an operating
licence - if the bingo involves more than £2,000 in stakes, or they award more
than £2,000 in prizes, in any seven-day period.

Occasional use notices

173. S39 of the Act provides that where there.isbetting on a track for 8 days or
fewer in a calendar year, betting may be permitted by an Occasional Use Notice
(OUN) without the need for a premises licence. The intention is to allow licensed
betting operators with appropriate.permission from the Commission to use tracks
for short periods for conducting betting, where the event upon which the betting is
to take place is of a temporary, infrequent nature.

174. The process for OUNSs.is different from TUNs. This Authority has very little
discretion within the QUN process, aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of
8 days in«a calendar year is not exceeded.

175. This Authority will, however, consider the definition of a “track” and will require
the applicant to demonstrate that they are responsible for the administration of
the “track® or are an occupier, and therefore permitted to avail themselves of the
notice.

Prize gaming permits

176. “Prize gaming” is where the nature and size of the prize is not determined by
the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by the gaming.
Normally the prizes are determined by the operator before play commences.
Prize gaming may take place without a permit in various premises. These are
casinos, bingo halls, adult gaming centres, licensed and unlicensed family
entertainment centres and travelling fairs.

46
Page 86



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

177. Given that prize gaming will particularly appeal to children and young persons,
this licensing authority will give particular weight to child protection issues. The
applicant will be expected to set out the types of gaming that they are intending to
offer and will also be expected to demonstrate:

e An understanding of the limits to stakes and prizes set out in regulations;
e That the gaming offered is within the law; and

e That clear policies exist that outline the steps to be taken to protect
children from harm.

178. The council will only grant a permit after consultation with the chief officer of
police. This will enable the licensing authority to determine the suitability of the
applicant; the suitability of the premises in relation to their location; and issues
about disorder.

179. While there are conditions set out in the Act with which the permit holder must
comply, the council cannot attach conditions. The Act requires that:

e The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied
with; and

e All chances to participate in the gaming-must be allocated on the
premises on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game
must be played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and
the result of the game must be.made public in the premises on the day
that it is played.

Club gaming and club machine permits

180. Members clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) may
apply for a club. gaming permit or a club machine permit. Commercial clubs may
apply for aclub machine permit. The club gaming permit will enable the premises
to provide gaming machines (three machines of categories B, C or D), equal
chance gaming, and games of chance as set out in regulations. A club machine
permit.will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (three machines of
categories B4, C or D).

181. A club must meet the following criteria to be considered a members’ club:

e |t must have at least 25 members;

e |t must be established and conducted wholly or mainly for purposes other
than gaming (unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations);

e |t must be permanent in nature;

e |t must not be established to make a commercial profit; and

It must be controlled by its members equally.

47
Page 87



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

182. Examples of these include working men’s clubs, branches of the Royal British
Legion and clubs with political affiliations.

183. This Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that:

e The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or
commercial club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to
receive the type of permit for which it has applied;

e The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/ or
young persons;

e An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by
the applicant while providing gaming facilities;

e A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten
years; or

e An objection has been lodged by the Commission-or the police.

184. There is also a “fast-track” procedure available under the Act for premises
which hold a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 (Schedule 12
paragraph 10). Under the fast-track procedure there.is no opportunity for
objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the grounds upon
which a council can refuse a permit are reduced. The grounds on which an
application under this process may be refused are:

e That the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming
prescribed under schedule 12;

e That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities
for other gaming; and

e That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant
in the last ten years has been cancelled.

185. There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits: that no child uses a
category B orC.machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any
relevant provision of a code of practice about the location and operation of
gaming machines.

48
Page 88



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section 6 — Small Society Lotteries

186. Under the Act, a lottery is unlawful unless it runs with an operating licence or
is an exempt lottery. The Licensing Authority will register and administer small
society lotteries (as defined). Promoting or facilitating a lottery will fall within 2
categories:

e licensed lotteries (requiring an operating licence from the Gambling
Commission); and

o exempt lotteries (including small society lotteries registered by the
Licensing Authority)

187. Exempt lotteries are lotteries permitted to run without a licence from the
Gambling Commission and these are:

e small society lotteries;

¢ incidental non-commercial lotteries;
e private lotteries;

e private society lotteries;

e work lotteries;

e residents’ lotteries; and

e customer lotteries.

188. Societies may organise lotteries if they are licensed by the Gambling
Commission or fall within the exempt category. This Authority recommends those
seeking to run lotteries take their own legal advice on which type of lottery
category they fall within. Guidance notes on small society lotteries, limits placed
on them and information setting out financial limits can be found on the Gambling
Commission web-site at:

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-the-public/Fundraising-and-
promotiens/Fundraising-and-promotions.aspx

189... Applicants for registration of small society lotteries must apply to the Licensing
Authority.in the area where their principal office is located. If application is
wrongly made to this Authority the applicant will be informed as soon as possible
and where possible, we will inform the other Licensing Authority.

190. Lotteries will be regulated through a licensing and registration scheme,
conditions imposed on licences by the Gambling Commission, codes of practice
and any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. In exercising its
functions with regard to small society and exempt lotteries, this Authority will have
due regard to the Gambling Commission’s guidance.

49
Page 89


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-the-public/Fundraising-and-promotions/Fundraising-and-promotions.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-the-public/Fundraising-and-promotions/Fundraising-and-promotions.aspx

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

191. This Authority will keep a public register of all applications and will provide
information to the Gambling Commission on all registered lotteries. As soon as
the entry on the register is completed, the applicant will be informed. In addition,
this Authority will make available for inspection by the public the financial
statements or returns submitted by societies in the preceding 18 months and will
monitor the cumulative totals for each, to ensure the annual monetary limit is not
breached. If there is any doubt, the Gambling Commission will be notified in
writing.

192. This Authority will refuse applications for registration if in the previous five
years, either an operating licence held by the applicant for registration has been
revoked, or an application for an operating licence made by the applicant for
registration has been refused.

193. This Authority may also refuse an application for registration if in its opinion:

e The applicant is not a non-commercial society;
e A person who will or may be connected with the promotion of the lottery
has been convicted of a relevant offence; or

e Information provided in or with the application for registration is false or
misleading.

194. Applicants must set out the purposes for which the Society is established and
will be asked to declare that they represent a bona fide non-commercial society
and have no relevant convictions. Further information may be sought from the
Society.

195. Where this;Authority intends to refuse registration of a Society, it will give the
Society an opportunity to make representations and will inform the Society of the
reasons why it is.minded to refuse registration, and supply evidence on which it
has reached.that preliminary conclusion.

196. . This Authority may revoke the registered status of a Society if it thinks that it
would have had to, or would be entitled to, refuse an application for registration if
it were being made at that time. However, no revocations will take place unless
the Society has been given the opportunity to make representations. The Society
will be informed of the reasons why it is minded to revoke the registration and will
provide an outline of the evidence on which it has reached that preliminary
conclusion.

197. Where a Society employs an external lottery manager, it will need to satisfy
itself that the manager holds an operator’s licence issued by the Gambling
Commission, and this Authority will expect this to be verified by the Society.

50
Page 90



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Section 7 — Enforcement

Good practice in regulation

198. The Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 places a legal duty on any
person exercising a specified regulatory function to have regard to the statutory
principles of good regulation in the exercise of the function. These provide that
regulatory activities should be carried out in a way which is transparent,
accountable, proportionate, and consistent and should be targeted only at cases
in which action is needed.

199. This Authority will have full regard to these principles when.carrying out any
regulatory activity and to the requirements of the Regulators’ Code. The purpose
of the Code is to promote efficient and effective approaches:to.regulatory
inspection and enforcement which improve regulatory outcomes without imposing
unnecessary burdens on business.

Enforcement policy

200. These principles are reflected within the Barking and Dagenham Regulatory
Services’ Enforcement Policy, which was prepared in consultation with relevant
stakeholders. The policy sets out the Council’s approach to enforcement, through
education, compliance and enforcement. These core standards cover all aspects
of enforcement delivered by the Council.

201. As well as ensuring that all. enforcement activity is proportionate, consistent,
transparent and accountable, the policy also requires that activity is targeted
primarily on those activities:and premises which give rise to the most serious
risks or where hazards are least well controlled. This will be informed by an
intelligence led approach. Regard will also be had to the local area profile set out
in this poliey.

202. Thisrisk-assessed approach will also be taken to inspections of premises, so
as to ensure that high risk premises requiring greater levels of attention will be
targeted while low risk premises will receive a lighter touch. Premises will be
assessed on the basis of;

e The type and location of the premises;

e The past operating history of the operator;

e The confidence in management; or

e The arrangements in place to promote the licensing objectives.

203. Where appropriate, this Authority will work with other responsible authorities
to promote the licensing objectives through enforcement. Compliance will

51
Page 91


https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/LBBD-Enforcement-Policy-2019.pdf
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/LBBD-Enforcement-Policy-2019.pdf

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

normally be sought through early engagement, mediation, education and advice.
In cases where this is not possible, officers will seek to achieve compliance
through the most appropriate route having regard to all relevant matters. Regard
will be had to primary authority directions, where appropriate.

204. When a decision of whether or not to prosecute is required then this Authority
will follow the principal criteria from the Guidance in the Code for Crown
Prosecutors which requires the two main tests to be considered:

e Whether the standard of evidence is sufficient for a realistic prospect of

conviction; and
e Whether a prosecution is in the public interest.

52
Page 92



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Appendix A — Contact details

The Responsible Authorities

Responsible authority Contact details

Licensing Department, Barking Town Hall, 1 Clockhouse Avenue

London Borough of

Barking, 1G11 7LU

Barking and Dagenham  Email: licensing@lbbd.gov.uk

Police Licensing

Planning and

Development Control

Child Protection

Licensing Department

Tel 01708 779162

Email EastAreaEABCUMailbox-
.B&DLicensing@met.pnn.police.uk

FAO Group Manager

Planning Department, Barking Town Hall, 1 Town
Square, Barking IG11 7LU

Email: planning@befirst.london

FAO Children Safeguarding

Child Protection Team, Barking Town Hall, 1
Clockhouse Avenue, Barking 1IG11 7LU
Email: childrensSegyices2@lbbd.gov.uk

Environmental Health Environmental Protection

Gambling Commission

HM. Revenue and
Customs

London.Fire Brigade

53

Environmental Health, Barking Town Hall, 1 Clockhouse

Avenue, Barking 1G11 7LU
Emailjenvironmentalprotection@Ibbd.gov.uk

4BP
Tel: 0121 230 6666
Email: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Greenock Accounting Centre, Custom House, Custom
House Quay, Greenock PA15 1EQ

Team Leader for Barking and Dagenham

Fire Safety Regulation — North, 169 Union Street,
London, SE1 OLL

Email: fsr-adminsupport@london-fire.gov.uk

Page 93

Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham B2


mailto:licensing@lbbd.gov.uk
mailto:EastAreaEABCUMailbox-.B&DLicensing@met.pnn.police.uk
mailto:EastAreaEABCUMailbox-.B&DLicensing@met.pnn.police.uk
mailto:planning@befirst.london
mailto:childrensServices2@lbbd.gov.uk
mailto:environmentalprotection@lbbd.gov.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
mailto:fsr-adminsupport@london-fire.gov.uk

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham

2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Appendix B - List of persons consulted in the preparation of this

policy

A public consultation was undertaken between 26 October 2022 until 30 December

2022.

Statutory Consultees

e The chief officer of police for the authority’s area

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent.the interests of
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions

under the Act

The above incorporated

e Responsible authorities and other relevant service providers

e Ward councillors

e Local licensed operators and relevant trades representative groups

e Publication on the authority’s website

Name of organisation

Responsible Authorities and other
relevant service providers

Metropolitan Police

Gambling Commission

HMRC

London Borough of Barking &
Dagenham:

Children’s Services
Environmental Health
Planning

Planning Enforcement
Trading Standards

Public Health

Immigration

London Fire Brigade

Ward Councillors

All London Borough of Barking &
Dagenham Ward Councillors

Licensed Operators and relevant trades
representative groups

All Betting/Adult Gaming Centres/Bingo
premises licenced with London Borough
of Barking & Dagenham

Poppleston Allen

Bingo Association

Association of British Bookmakers

54

Page 94




Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Betting Premises Head Office William Hill Head Office

Ladbrokes/Coral Head Office

Paddy Power

Betfred
Adult Gaming Centre Head Office Reels

Mulbrook
Bingo Head Offices Mecca

Murkur

Service Providers and Voluntary Groups | IATP - Talking Therapies
representing the interests of those likely
to be affected by the exercise of the
authority’s functions under the Act

Subwize - Substance ‘abuse andyoung
people specialists

Citizens Advice Bureau, Barking

Lifeline Network Dagenham

Blesma Army. Veterans.Charity,
Chadwell Heath

GamCare

Gamble Aware

The following were contacted by Public
Health:

Addictions Psychiatrist GCL-St LuKe’s
Service

Substance Misuse Worker

Head of Commissioning Disabilities,
LBBD

Commissioning Manager LBBD

Appendix C — Mandatory & Default Licence Conditions

55
Page 95



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Mandatory conditions

A. All Premises
The following mandatory conditions apply to all premises licences:

e The summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued
by the licensing authority must be displayed in a prominent place on the
premises

e The layout of the premises must be maintained in accordance with the
plan that forms part of the premises licence

e Neither National Lottery products nor tickets in a private or customer
lottery may be sold on the premises.

B. Bingo Premises

e A notice stating that no person under the age.of 18 years is permitted to
play bingo on the premises shall be displayed in a prominent place at
every entrance to the premises.

e No customer shall be able to enter bingo premises directly from a casino,
an adult gaming centre or betting premises (other than a track).

e Over 18 areas within bingo halls that admit under-18s must be separated
by a barrier with prominently displayed notices stating that under-18s are
not allowed in that area.and with adequate supervision in place to ensure
that children and young people are not able to access these areas or the
category B or C machines. Supervision may be done either by placing the
terminals within the line of sight of an official of the operator or via
monitored CCTV.

e Any admission charges, the charges for playing bingo games and the rules
of bingo must be displayed in a prominent position on the premises. Rules
can be displayed on a sign, by making available leaflets or other written
material containing the rules, or running an audio-visual guide to the rules
priorto any bingo game being commenced.

e Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a
place that requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling
in order to do so.

C. Betting Premises

e A notice shall be displayed at all entrances to the betting premises stating
that no person under the age of 18 will be admitted. The notice should be
clearly visible to people entering the premises.

e There must be no access to betting premises from other premises that
undertake a commercial activity (except from other premises with a betting

56
Page 96



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

premises licence including tracks). Except where it is from other licensed

betting premises, the entrance to a betting shop should be from a street

(defined as including any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, square,

court, alley or passage — including passages through enclosed premises

such as shopping centres — whether a thoroughfare or not).

Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a

place that requires any customer who wishes to use it to leave any gaming

machine or self-service betting terminal (SSBT) in order to do so.

No apparatus for making information or any other material available in the

form of sounds or visual images may be used on the licensed premises,

except where used to communicate:

- Information about or coverage of sporting events, including information
relating to betting on such events (and incidental information‘including
advertisements)

- Information relating to betting (including results) on any event in
connection with which bets may have been affected on the premises.

- Betting operator-owned TV channels are permitted.

No music, dancing or other entertainment is.permitted on betting premises.

This includes any form of entertainment.such as apparatus producing

sound or visual images which do.not fall within paragraph 19.15 or

machines which do not come within the categories of machine explicitly
allowed in betting premises-under.s.172(8) of the Act.

The consumption of alcohol on the premises is prohibited during any time

which facilities for gambling are being provided on the premises.

The only publications that may be sold or made available on the premises

are racing periodicals or specialist betting publications.

A notice setting out the terms on which a bet may be placed must be

displayed in a prominent position on the premises.

D. Adult gaming centres

57

A notice must be displayed at all entrances to AGCs stating that no person
under the age of 18 years will be admitted to the premises.

There can be no direct access between an AGC and any other premises
licensed under the Act or premises with a family entertainment centre
(FEC), club gaming, club machine or alcohol licensed premises gaming
machine permit. There is no definition of ‘direct access’ in the Act or
regulations, although licensing authorities may consider that there should
be an area separating the premises concerned, such as a street or cafe,
which the public go to for purposes other than gambling, for there to be no
direct access.

Page 97



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a
place that requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling
at any gaming machine in order to do so.

The consumption of alcohol in AGCs is prohibited at any time during which
facilities for gambling are being provided on the premises. A notice stating
this should be displayed in a prominent place at every entrance to the
premises.

E. Licensed family entertainment centres

58

The summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued
by the licensing authority under s.164(1)(c) of the Act must be displayed in
a prominent place within the premises.

The layout of the premises must be maintained in accordance. with the
plan.

The premises must not be used for the sale of tickets in a private lottery or
customer lottery, or the National Lottery.

No customer shall be able to enter the premises directly from a casino, an
adult gaming centre or betting premises (other than a track). There is no
definition of ‘direct access’ in the Act or regulations, but licensing
authorities may consider that there should be an area separating the
premises concerned, such as a street or cafe, which the public go to for
purposes other than gambling, for there to be no direct access.

Any ATM made available for use on the premises must be located in a
place that requires any.customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling
at any gaming machine.in"order to do so.

Over-18 areas within FECs that admit under-18s, must be separated by a
barrier-with prominently displayed notices at the entrance stating that
under-18s are not allowed in that area and with adequate supervision in
place to ensure that children and young persons are not able to access
these areas or the category C machines. Supervision may be done either
by placing the terminals within the line of sight of an official of the operator
or via monitored CCTV.

The consumption of alcohol in licensed FECs is prohibited at any time
during which facilities for gambling are being provided. A notice stating this
should be displayed in a prominent position on the premises.

Page 98



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Default Licence Conditions

A. Bingo Premises
e Bingo facilities in bingo premises may not be offered between the hours of
midnight and 9am. However, there are no restrictions on access to gaming
machines in bingo premises.

B. Betting Premises

e Gambling facilities may not be offered in betting premises between the
hours of 10pm on one day and 7am on the next day, on any day:.

59
Page 99



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Appendix D — Local Area Profile

Introduction

This local area profile aims to summarise existing national research regarding
gambling related harm, as well as providing a local evidence base regarding
vulnerable groups and geographical areas of potential risk. We need to understand
local areas in terms of vulnerable groups and geographical locations potentially
linked to gambling related harm.

Data from various sources will be utilised to provide an understanding of current and
emerging issues to support the statement of licensing policy, as well as identifying
issues that will need to be considered by operators during the application process.

The local area profile will inform and support the Statement of Licensing Policy. The
local area profile will also serve to support the decision-making process in relation to
future licence applications to minimise the risks associated with gambling premises.
Ultimately the findings will assist the Licensing Authority in terms of meeting the
objectives and ensuring the specific needs of local communities are considered and
vulnerable groups are protected.

Focus on Risk

A risk-based approach to regulation has been a key part of the Gambling
Commission’s principles for licensing.and regulation since 2009, meaning that
resources are concentrated where they are-needed most and can be most effective.

Greater pursuit and clearer demonstration of this risk-based approach was a key
recommendation of the Department of Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee
inquiry into the impact.of.the Gambling Act 5. This renewed emphasis on risk-based
regulation can be seen.in the Gambling Commission’s revised Licensing Conditions
and Codes of Practice (LCCP) which encourages industry to consider the risk that
their venues pose to the licensing objectives and to take appropriate action.

This focus on risk is underpinned by the Gambling Commission’s encouragement
that stakeholders, including industry and local government, better consider risk, look
at future risks and think about risk in a probabilistic way: Risk is not necessarily
related to an event that has happened. Risk is related to the probability of an event
happening and the likely impact of that event — in this case on licensing objectives.
Here the onus is not to prove that action one way or another will have a certain effect
or outcome but rather to think about the likely impacts that could happen, given what
is known about a local area, and to think about the likelihood of these outcomes

4 Gambling Commission (2009) Statement of principles for licensing and regulation. Birmingham:
Gambling Commission
5 Department for Culture, Media and Sport (2001). Gambling Review Report. London: DCMS

60
Page 100



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

occurring. This changes the burden of proof away from demonstrating that certain
actions will have a stated outcome towards thinking that they may have certain
outcomes because of a variety of influences.

Vulnerable Groups

The Gambling Act 2005 identifies children and vulnerable people as a priority for
regulatory focus. A 2016 study ‘Exploring area-based vulnerability to gambling-
related harm: Developing the gambling-related harm risk index’ ® aimed to consider
the types of people who may be at greater risk of harm from gambling and where
they might be located.

There is evidence to support those from certain ethnic groups, such as Asian/Asian
British, Black/Black British and Chinese/other ethnicity as being potentially more
vulnerable to gambling-related harm. Recent studies have also identified that new
migrants may be disproportionately affected by gambling’

Via a process of consultation with key stakeholders, evidence assessment, and the
availability of sufficient local data, the following criteria were utilised in the 2016
study to develop indices of risk to gambling-related harm:

e Problem gamblers who are seeking treatment e Substance abuse/misuse
e Poor mental health e Unemployment

e Ethnic groups e Youth

e Financial difficulties/debt e Homelessness.

Betting Premises in Barking and Dagenham

The place where a person gambles is an important factor in the management of risk
to the licensing objectives, and'local policies and plans should reflect the need for
limits on gambling establishments in hotspot locations and areas of risk identified via
the following profile. London Borough of Barking and Dagenham currently regulates
88 gambling premises; see below for a breakdown of the licence type.

LICENCE TYPE (August 2022 data) TOTAL
Betting Premises other than track 37
Club Permits 13
Alcohol Licensed Premises — Notification 17
Alcohol Licensed Premises - Permit 11
Small Society Lottery Registration 4
Adult Gaming Centre 3
Bingo Premises 3

Total | 88

6 Exploring area-based vulnerability to gambling-related harm: Developing the gambling-related

harm risk index (2016) Westminster City Council 7 Gambling-related harm among recent migrant
communities in the UK: Responses to a 21st century urban phenomenon (kcl.ac.uk) (2018) Kings
College London

61
Page 101


https://www.kcl.ac.uk/research/gambling-and-migrants
https://www.kcl.ac.uk/research/gambling-and-migrants

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

GambleAware Interactive Maps showing Gambling Harms Prevalence

Using data collected as part of the Annual Great Britain Treatment and Support
Survey, GambleAware has worked with Oliver O'Brien at University College London
to produce interactive maps of Great Britain which show gambling harms prevalence
in each local authority and parliamentary constituency area, as well as usage of and
reported demand for treatment and support for gambling harms. In addition, a map
showing Index of Multiple deprivation (IMD) across GB has been created to compare
against gambling prevalence, as well as a map showing where National Gambling
Treatment Service providers operate and their contact information. These interactive
maps are a valuable tool to help understand the levels of need in an areagkhe maps
can be found at https://www.begambleaware.org/gambleaware-gb-maps

Map A: Gambling Prevalence Based on Problem Gambling Severity Index{(PGSI) at
a local authority level

CHINGFORD,
EDMONTON

WOODFORD,
WALTHAMSTOW,

FINCHLEY]

Problem gamblers (PGSI 8+)

Prevalence by area HORNCHURCH

Quintile with lowest prevalence
. Second quintile
I Third quintile
. Fourth quintile
. Quintile with highest prevalence

This map shows that London Boréugh of Barking & Dagenham is a quintile which
has the highest prevalence of,problem gamblers.

Map B - Index.of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) at a local authority level

T ENFIELD

BRENTWOOD

TANMORE

FINCHLEY

ROMFORD

Index of Multiple Deprivation

Separate Quintiles for England (2019), HORNCHURCH
Wales (2019), Scotland (2020)

. Quintile with highest deprivation DAGENHAM

Second quintile

Third quintile

Fourth quintile
: . Quintile with lowest deprivation

This map shows that the London Borough of Barking & Dagenham is in the quintile
with the highest deprivation.

62
Page 102


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.begambleaware.org%2Fgambleaware-gb-maps&data=05%7C01%7CBayley.Allison%40gambleaware.org%7Cf68abffd1e304372a08d08dac19c0593%7C0572c9ff9b6d4533a6bf5864cf7304e9%7C0%7C0%7C638035173086056311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DfCQzoJ8AhaqomvFe%2B07DUlTXU8EudxU6SH9%2FT3Kqlw%3D&reserved=0
https://www.begambleaware.org/gambleaware-gb-maps

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

pags Barking &
Vulnerabilities Dagenham

to gambling
related harm

Tony Doherty
Insight Hub

Updated

one borough; one community; no one left behind 12t October 2022




Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

This pack has 2 sections:

1. Location of betting premises within Barking & Dagenham versus areas of the
borough with:

» lowest income/most poverty
* most crime/ASB/Domestic Abuse offences

2. Profiles of 4 distinct areas within the borough identified as those with the biggest
concentration of betting premises and high overall risk of gambling related harm

Indicators Mapped
The following indicators have been used for this mapping analysis:

1. Unemployment related benefit claimants (ONS) — December 2021
Incapacity benefit claimants (DWP) = August 2021

Carers Allowance claimants (DWP) - August 2021

Universal Credit claimants in employment (DWP) - December 2021
Pension Credit claimants (DWP) - August 2021

Income Support claimants (DWP) - August 2021

Housing Benefit-households (DWP) - November 2021

Fuel poverty households (DIBS) - 2020

9. Children living in relative low-income families (DWP) - March 2021
10.Crime rate (MET) — April 2021 to March 2022

11.Police recorded anti-social behaviour - April 2021 to March 2022

12:Median household income - 2021

© N o o~ Wb

64
Page 104



65

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Betting premises within Barking & Dagenham

September 2022
* Bingo

& AGC

. Betting

[ LBBD Wards 2022

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

Page 105



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Betting Premises Per Ward

Goresbrook
Abbey
Northbury
Whalebone
Village
Longbridge
Becontree
Valence
Mayesbrook
Heath

Eastbury
Thames View
Parsloes
Gascoigne
Beam

Alibon
Eastbrook & Rush Green
Chadwell Heath

Barking Riverside

Betting premises per ward

o
=
Mo
w
i
w
a3}

42 betting premises within Barking & Dagenham:

+ 36 betting shops
« 3 adult gaming centres
+ 3 bingo halls

66

Page 106




Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Summary of the two biggest clusters of betting premises

The 6 betting premises clustered together in the Heathway are in:
» one of our most impoverished (deprived) areas

» one of our higher-than-average areas for both overall crime and incidents of
anti-social behaviour recorded by the Police

* an area where the median annual household income is below £24,000

The 11 betting premises clustered together in Barking Town Centre are in:
« an area with high levels of poverty
» the area of the borough with the highest crime rate
+ the area of the borough with the highest rate of ASB recorded by the Police

+ the area of the borough with the highest rate of domestic abuse offences
recorded by the Police

* an area where the median annual‘household income ranges between £24,000
to £29,000

67
Page 107



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Household Income (2021)

Median household income

per LSOA
I £18K to £23.9K
[ £23.9K to £28.9K
[ £28.9K to £32.6K
[ £32.6K to £38.4K
[ £38.4K to £46K
& Bingo
Jr AGC
@ Betting
[ LBBD Wards 2022

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

Page 108



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Poverty Tracker

Rank of average rank

[ LBBD Wards
rank vs all lower layer super output areas in England

Il 0% to 10% highest rates (ranks 1 to 3,284)

B 10% to 20% highest rates (ranks 3,285 to 6,568)
[ 20% to 30% highest rates (ranks 6,569 to 9,853)
1 30% to 40% highest rates (ranks 9,854 to 13,137)
"1 40% to 50% highest rates (ranks 13,138 to 16,422)
[_150% to 60% highest rates (ranks 16,423 to 19,706)
1 60% to 70% highest rates (ranks 19,707 to 22,990)
I 20% to 30% lowest rates (ranks 22,991 to 26,275)
B 10% to 20% lowest rates (ranks 26,276 to 29,559)
Il 0% to 10% lowest rates (ranks 29,560 to 32,844)

Source: DWP

Betting premises - Sep 22

# Bingo
* AGC
@ Betting

This map is based on the average rank of each
Barking & Dagenham LSOA versus all 32,844 LSOA's
in England for the following nine indicators:

1) Unemployment related benefit claimants (DWP) as
at December 2021

2) Incapacity benefit claimants (DWP) as at August
2021

3) Carers Allowance claimants (DWP) as at August
2021

4) Universal Credit claimants in employment (DWP) as
at December 2021

5) Pension Credit claimants (DWP) as at August 2021
6) Income Support claimants (DWP) as at August
2021

7) Housing Benefit households (DWP) as at Nov 2021
8) Fuel poverty households {DIBS) as at 2020

9) Children living in relative low-income families
(DWP) as at March 2021

Heath

Wi THE CHASE
WNATUARE
RESERVE

EASTBRDOKEND

COUNTAY.

Barking

PaE@q.L&sd by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Crime rate (2021/22)

T ERLLES

Crimes per 1,000 population

per LSOA

7 34-67
[] 67-9
[ ] 96-128
[] 128-226
I 226-381
@ Bingo 4
* AGC e
@ Betting A
] LBBD Wards 2022

Becontr
Heath
8

| daigucr v

& BECONTHEE|

T = i EE
Ei

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

Page 110



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Crimes (2021/22)

Location of recorded crimes

DENSITY

1 lowest
o
(|
|
Il highest
@ Bingo
* AGC
@ Betting
® Crimes 2021-22 crimes for spatial
[ LBBD Wards 2022

B thﬁ!/

& 5" &1 0 2 % CAuNTRY

o

Riverside

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

71

Page 111



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Anti Social Behaviour - Police recorded (2021/22)

ASB per 1,000 population

[ 1.8-14.4
[ 144-237
[ 23.7-356
-
[
[ ]

35.6-70.9
70.9 - 106.0

@ Betting
[ LBBD Wards 2022

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

72
Page 112



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Anti Social Behaviour - Police recorded (2021/22)

location of recorded ASB

DENSITY

[ ] lowest
[
[ |

[ |

I highest

@ Bingo

W AGC

@® Betting
[ LBBD Wards 2022

Produced by Barking & Dagenham's Insight Hub

Page 113



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Domestic Abuse Offences /

-
)

14.1 /
P

Abbey ward has the highest rate of domestic abuse offences per 1,000 population.
It is also the ward with the biggest concentration of betting premises
Data not yet available for. our-new wards

Source: Metropolitan Police (October 2021 to September 2022)

Some insights about the four areas with a cluster of betting premises

We can break our 2021 Residents Matrix down to smaller geographies (including
output areas) to.provide insights re:

Age structure

Ethnicity

Tenure

Household Structure

Households in receipt of social care services

Poverty related data is also available at output area from the Department for Work
and Pensions

Output areas (OA) were created by ONS specifically for the output of census
estimates

An average OA will have about 300 residents living in circa 130 households
(2011 Census)

Barking & Dagenham consists of 553 output areas

74
Page 114



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Barking Cluster

p '1_?-&\ ISIE:"!-H/;) §@% ¢ Ay
we b

S 4
S
AR @\*\5; BARK )
&\P' e \ @455" A
) e
|\Nﬁ, (i\\,_ SO
= = ?S. '\'?0

A4 f%% Shop £en -
& 4 FBr 7 Sire
Clini & _ SUFF(
Pol\.2 Q}Q'v N \ oS
L%l SN P8 d
S $

\ 65 70
eatres, SUPRISIONG all @0,?4’ \‘\‘?\'w
ARKINGX255 7 0%, ot

n . C00 N X =
| ST \ % S /{:
& (ST
7 XCMil = % XN\ % \E@M 5 Ao~

The 11 betting premises clustered together in the Barking Town Centre area are
within 4 output areas:

EO00000051

E00000062

E00175106

E00175103

abrwd =

These 4 output areas are defined as the ‘Barking cluster’ in the following information.

75
Page 115



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Heathway Cluster

DAGENHAM
.-—_-I i ATTILY

The 6 betting premises clustered together in the Dagenham Heathway area are
within 4 output areas:

1. .E00000093
2. E00000440
3. E00000441
4. E00000511

These 4 output areas are defined as the ‘Heathway cluster’ in the following
information.

76
Page 116



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Chadwell Heath High Road Cluster

The 3 betting premises clustered together in the Chadwell Heath High Road area are
within 1 single output area:

1. E00000568
This output area is defined as the ‘Chadwell cluster’ in the following information

CAUTION: VERY SMALL GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

77
Page 117



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Green Lane Cluster

10

DONNE Rp

The 3 betting premises clustered together in'the Green Lane area are within 1 single
output area:

1. E00165805
This output area is defined as the ‘Green Lane cluster’ in the following slides
CAUTION: VERY SMALL GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

78
Page 118



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Both biggest cluster areas have a higher proportion of residents aged between
25 and 45 and a higher proportion of children — especially in the Barking
cluster area

Barking Cluster

90+ | |
85-89 i_1Barking cluster
80-84 Males
75-79 {1Barking cluster
70-74 Females
65-69 B gh Mal
H Borou ales
60-64
2021
55-59
50.54 m Borough
4520 Females 2021
40-44
35-39 -E
3034 :
- ‘-_'_____I
25-29
20-24
15-19
10-14
5-9
.
0-4 :
20.0 15.0 10.0 5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0
PERCENT

Heathway Cluster

90+ | |
85>-89 i_!Heathway
80-84 cluster Males
7579 1Heathway
70-74 cluster Females
65-69 5 ah Mal

W Borou ales
60-64
2021

55-59
50-54 !- ----- [ | Borough
45.49 Females 2021
40-44
3539 |
30-34
25-29
20-24
15-19
10-14

59

0-4

15.0 10.0 5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0
PERCENT

79
Page 119



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

2023

Both very small areas have very different age profile to the borough

Chadwell Cluster

90+
8589
80-84
75-79
7074
65-69
60-64
55.59
50-54
45-49
4044
35-39
30-34
25-29
20-24
15-19
10-14
59
0-4

200 150 10.0 5.0

UChadwell cluster
Males

{3 Chadwell cluster
Females

B Borough Males
2021

m Borough
Females 2021

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0
PERCENT

Green Lane Cluster

90+
85-89
80-84
75-79
70-74
65-69
60-64
55-59
50-54
45-49
40-44
35-39
30-34
25-29
20-24
15-19
10-14
59
0-4

200 150 10.0 5.0

iZ!Green Lane
cluster Males

2 Green Lane
cluster Females

H Borough Males
2021

m Borough
Females 2021

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0
PERCENT

80

Page 120



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

2023

Ethnicity profile of the areas

Ethnic groups - 2021
40%
35%
300
U 25%
o8]
«Q
(]
'—\
N 20%
15%
10%
N 1 I Ill 1
White White Other Asan Indian  Asan Pakistan Aslan Other Asian Black
British/Irish Bangladesha Caribbaan

Black Afnican  Other black

®m Barking cluster

B Heathway cluster

B Chadwell cluster
Green Lane cluster

W Berough

Chinese Other

one borough; one community; no one left behind

Barking &
Dagenham



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Tenure and household structure within the areas

Tenure - 2021

Household structure - 2021

-
Faavdy hussmbosoh w i ady b wletow i peryon lpane e atelcrwd
- e Ceae bonsusrbodds wr b voameh chde . - bonimbodds
dopwrrdert clitiwe

ZeT obed

w il ody wrdret Dy:umd s bd
haows el o

s od

Barking &

one borough; one community; no one left behind Dagenham

82



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Unemployment related benefits - claimant count
14%
m Cluster = Borough
12%
:E' 10%
2
e 8%
v =
QU &
g S
@ -
B =
N = 0%
w -
® 10.4%
g 8.8%
o 4%
3¢
Barking cluster Heathway duster Chadwell duster Green Lane duster

one borough; one community; no one left behind

83

7.1% is the claimant
count for Barking &
Dagenham at March
2022

oth highest rate in the
country

3 highest rate in
London

Each cluster has a
higher claimant count
than the borough

Barking &
Dagenham



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

¥¢T1 abed

percentage of population aged 16 to 64

20%

15%

107

Universal Credit claimants in employment
mm Cluster w—Borough

17.7%
12.8%
8.9%

Barking cluster Heathway duster Chadwell duster Green Lane cluster

84

one borough; one community; no one left behind

9.3% of working age
adults in Barking &
Dagenham are in
employment and
claiming universal credit
(March 2022)

5™ highest rate in the
country

Highest rate in London

3 clusters have a higher
rate than the borough

Barking &
Dagenham



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

c7T abed

percentage of households

G602

50%

4%

3%

109%

Housing Benefit or Universal Credit with housing entitlement
mm Cluster ===Borough

65.3% 68.7%
42.9%
37.9%

Barking cluster Heathway dluster Chadwell duster Green Lane duster

85

one borough; one community; no one left behind

34.7% households within
Barking & Dagenham are
claiming Housing
Benefits or Universal
Credit with housing
entitlement (March 2022)

5th highest rate in
London and the country

Each cluster has a
higher rate than the
borough

Barking &
Dagenham



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

o771 afberd

L4

g

percentage of children aged under 16

Children living in relative low-income families

m Cluster —Borough

25%

2U%

15%

10%

5%

Barking cluster

Heathway cluster Chadwell duster Green Lane duster

86

one borough; one community; no one left behind

25.3% of children aged
under 16 in Barking &
Dagenham are living in
relative low income families

(March 2021)
Highest rate in London

34t highest rate in the
country

2 clusters have a higher
rate than the borough

Relative low income is defined as a family
whose equivalised income before

housing costs (BHC) is below 60 per cent
of median income in the reference

Year

A famly must have claimed Child Benefit
and at least one other household
benefit (Universal Credit, tax credits or
Housing Benefit) at any point in the year
to be classed as low incone in these
statistics

Barking &
Dagenham



Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Median householdincome
£29,259 is the median
e Cluster —Borough household income within
Barking & Dagenham
(March 2022)

Thousands

Lowest figure in London

* Average London
borough = £38,492

United Kingdom =
£32,549

12T abed

3 clusters have lower
household income than
the borough

Barking cluster Heathway duster Chadwell cluster Grean Lane cluster Barking &
one borough; one community; no one left behind Dagenham

87



8zT abed

Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Households within the areas in receipt of social care services

6.3% households within the borough are receiving an Adult Social care service — same as Heathway but lower in
other 3 areas (Barking = 5.4%, Chadwell = 5.6% and Green Lane = 1.2%)

1.4% households within the borough are receiving a Children’s Social care service — same as both Barking and
Heathway, lower in Chadwell (zero) and higher in Green Lane (2.4%)

Adult Social Care by household structure - 2021

Count of households receiving, ov having
recleved one or more adult social care services,
between March 2018 and Mavch 2021

® Chadww!| cluyter

reen Lane duster

B Boroug?

8 Barking duster

arvily ho ursholh dnge & Mer cchabiting  chdew pers ¢ lvee prrerational biting other houmhelds atridy heusd otk with snghe aduit houne
" TR Peousianhodes v wuahal ' sl sk oushids no houwhod " Vidipard
tdrr drpensant e = M L

Childrens Social Care by household structure - 2021

Count of households receiving, or having BRARhwey cluster
recieved one or move childrens sociol care m Chadwell ¢luste
services, between April 2020 and March 2021

,\| ,

Barklng &

one borough; one community; no one left behind Dagenham

88




Appendix 3 - London Borough of Barking & Dagenham | 2023
Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023 - 2026

Appendix E — References

The Gambling Act 2005 -
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/pdfs/ukpga_20050019_en.pdf

The Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local Licensing Authorities (Latest edition
April 2021) -
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities

Gambling Commission Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (October 2020) -
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp

National Strategy to Reduce Gambling Related Harm (February 2021-Update) -
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/manual/national-strategy-to-reduce-
gambling-harms/prevention-and-education-overview

Health Survey for England 2015 — Published by NHS Digital (formerly the NHS Information
Centre). Chapter on Gambling commissioned by the Gambling.Commission. Due for
publication Spring 2017. http://www.gamblingcommissigmgov.uk/fmews-action-and-
statistics/Statistics-and-research/Levels-of-participation=and*groblem-gambling/Levels-of-
problem-gambling-in-England.aspx

Barking and Dagenham Key Population and Demographic Facts (provisional mid 2020
population estimates) - hitps://www.Ibbd.goy.uk/council/statistics-and-data/census-
information/key-population-demographic-facts/

Human Rights Act 1998 - hitp//www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents

Data Protection Act - https://iwww.gov.uk/data-protection

The Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 -
http://www.legislatiomigovaik/ukpga/2006/51/contents

Regulators’ €oede =https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code
Barking and Dagenham Enforcement Policy 2019 -
https:/Aww.lbbd.gov.uk/council/priorities-and-strategies/council-policies/regulatory-services-

policies/régulatory-services-enforcement-policy/

Exploring area-based vulnerability to gambling-related harm: Developing the gambling-
related harm risk index’ (2016) Westminster City Council

Gambling-related harm among recent migrant communities in the UK: Responses to a 21st
century urban phenomenon (kcl.ac.uk) (2018) Kings College London

89
Page 129


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/pdfs/ukpga_20050019_en.pdf
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/manual/national-strategy-to-reduce-gambling-harms/prevention-and-education-overview
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/manual/national-strategy-to-reduce-gambling-harms/prevention-and-education-overview
http://content.digital.nhs.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/news-action-and-statistics/Statistics-and-research/Levels-of-participation-and-problem-gambling/Levels-of-problem-gambling-in-England.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/news-action-and-statistics/Statistics-and-research/Levels-of-participation-and-problem-gambling/Levels-of-problem-gambling-in-England.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/news-action-and-statistics/Statistics-and-research/Levels-of-participation-and-problem-gambling/Levels-of-problem-gambling-in-England.aspx
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/council/statistics-and-data/census-information/key-population-demographic-facts/
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/council/statistics-and-data/census-information/key-population-demographic-facts/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.gov.uk/data-protection
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/51/contents
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/council/priorities-and-strategies/council-policies/regulatory-services-policies/regulatory-services-enforcement-policy/
https://www.lbbd.gov.uk/council/priorities-and-strategies/council-policies/regulatory-services-policies/regulatory-services-enforcement-policy/
file:///C://Users/kcollier/AppData/Local/Temp/MicrosoftEdgeDownloads/ca570ae5-e655-4d88-ba36-5ff2678110ee/Phase%202%20Report%20Web%20Version%20-%20Final%20-%209th%20February%202016.pdf
file:///C://Users/kcollier/AppData/Local/Temp/MicrosoftEdgeDownloads/ca570ae5-e655-4d88-ba36-5ff2678110ee/Phase%202%20Report%20Web%20Version%20-%20Final%20-%209th%20February%202016.pdf
https://www.kcl.ac.uk/research/gambling-and-migrants
https://www.kcl.ac.uk/research/gambling-and-migrants

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Screening Tool

Equality Impact Assessments help the Council to comply with its public sector duty under
the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to equality implications. ElAs also help services
to be customer focussed, leading to improved service delivery and customer satisfaction.

The Council understands that whilst its equalities duty applies to all services, it is going to
be more relevant to some decisions than others. We need to ensure that the detail of
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) are proportionate to the impact of decisions on the
equality duty, and that in some cases a full EIA is not necessary.

This tool assists services in determining whether plans and decisions will require a full EIA.
It should be used on all new policies, projects, functions, staff restructuring, major
development or planning applications, or when revising them.

Full guidance on the Council’s duties and ElAs and the full EIA template is available at
Equality Impact Assessments.

Proposal/Project/Policy
Title

Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2023-2026

Service Area

Environmental Health and Public Protection

Officer completing the
EIA Screening Tool

Karen Collier, Service Manager Environmental Health and
Public Protection

Head of Service

Gary Jones, Head of Regulatory Services

Date

10/01/2023

Brief Summary of the
Proposal/Project/Policy

Include main aims,
proposed outcomes,
recommendations/
decisions sought.

The Council, as local licensing authority for gaming and
betting, is required under the Gambling Act 2005, to have in
place a policy statement of the principles by which it will
abide in carrying out its licensing responsibilities. A draft
policy for 2022-2025 has been prepared for public
consultation. There have not been any significant changes to
the previous policy for 2019-2022.

Protected
characteristic

Impact Description

Age

The protection of children is one of the
licensing objectives and as such, the
policy includes detailed best practice
management advice around child
protection issues. This deals with
issues such as age-verification and
advertising. Child Protection are a

Positive impact (L)

Page 131



https://lbbd.sharepoint.com/sites/IntTp/Strategy-Portal/Corporate%20Templates/Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20Template.docx

Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Screening Tool

statutory responsible authority under
the Act and are consulted on all new
and varied premises licence
applications and will be directly
consulted regarding the revised policy.

Disability | Not applicable Describe the impact.
(N/A)

Gender re-assignment | Not applicable Describe the impact.
(N/A)

Marriage and civil | Not applicable Describe the impact.
partnership | (N/A)

Pregnancy and | Not applicable Describe the impact.
maternity | (N/A)

Race | Positive impact (L) | In formulating the policy, a local area

profile has been prepared with the
support of the Insight Team. The local
area profile includes an assessment of
vulnerabilities to gambling related
harm, which includes ethnicity.
Premises based businesses are
required to carry out their own risk
assessment and to refer to the local
area profile when they set out what
actions they are going to take to
mitigate risks.

Religion

Not applicable
(N/A)

Describe the impact.

Sex

Not applicable
(N/A)

Describe the impact.

Sexual orientation

Not applicable
(N/A)

Describe the impact.

Socio-Economic
Disadvantage’

Positive impact (L)

In formulating the policy, a local area
profile has been prepared with the
support of the Insight Team. The local
area profile includes an assessment of
vulnerabilities to gambling related
harm, which includes socio-economic
disadvantage. Premises based
businesses are required to carry out
their own risk assessment and to refer
to the local area profile when they set

1 Socio-Economic Disadvantage is not a protected characteristic under the Equality Act. London Borough of Barking
and Dagenham has chosen to include Socio-Economic Disadvantage as best practice.

Page 132




Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Screening Tool

out what actions they are going to take
to mitigate risks.

How visible is this Medium visibility to the general
servicel/policy/project/proposal to the public (M)
general public?

What is the potential risk to the Council’s Low risk to repuation (L)
reputation?

Consider the following impacts — legal,
financial, political, media, public perception etc

If your answers are mostly H and/or M = Full EIA to be completed

If after completing the EIA screening process you determine that a full EIA is not relevant
for this service/function/policy/project you must provide explanation and evidence below.

The proposed policy has been prepared in line with the requirements of both national
legislation and national guidance both of which will have been subject to equalities
impact assessments in their own right by the Government and the Gambling
Commission.

The proposed policy statement is a revision of a previously adopted council policy.
There have not been any significant changes to the policy, which demonstrates that the
fundamental principles that were established previously are sound and remain relevant.

In formulating the policy, a local area profile has been prepared with the support of the
Insight Team. The local area profile includes an assessment of vulnerabilities to
gambling related harm, which includes age, ethnicity and socio-economic disadvantage.

The protection of children is one of the licensing objectives and as such, the policy
includes detailed best practice management advice around child protection issues. This
deals with issues such as age-verification and advertising. Child Protection are a
statutory responsible authority under the Act and are consulted on all new and varied
premises licence applications and will be directly consulted regarding the revised policy.

Across all nine national Protected Characteristics groupings and our tenth grouping in
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham of socio-economic disadvantage, the impact
is predicted to be ‘low positive’, with no anticipated need to take specific actions to
mitigate or enhance the impact.

A public consultation will be carried out in line with the Gambling Commission guidance
to Licensing Authorities. This requires the following to be consulted:

e The Chief Officer of Police for the area

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests
of persons carrying on gambling businesses area; and

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests
of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s
functions under the Act.

Page 133



Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Screening Tool

Additionally, the following will also be consulted:

e All ward Councillors,

e All responsible authorities under the Act
e The Gambling Commission.

e Public Health

The policy sets out processes and procedures that aim to protect human rights, in
particular those rights relating to a right to a fair trial, no punishment without law and
right to respect for private and family life. If the policy was not followed, there is a risk
that human rights may be breached.

Full consideration will be given to any consultation feedback regarding impacts to
protected characteristics.

Formal consultation, as endorsed by the Corporate Strategy Group at its meeting on 15
September 2022, was undertaken between 26 October 2022 until 30 December 2022,
which provided an opportunity, in particular for the following stakeholders to provide
feedback.
e Responsible authorities
e Service providers and persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the
authority’s functions under the Act
e Ward councillors
e Local licensed operators and relevant trades representative groups
e Publication on the authority’s website

The equalities impact was further reviewed and considered following the consultation
responses. Consultation feedback referred to the need to protect children and vulnerable
adults from gambling related harm reflecting the data in the local area profile of the draft
policy statement.

Please submit the form to CE-strategy@Ibbd.gov.uk and include the above explanation as
part of the equalities comments on any subsequent related report.

Page 134


mailto:CE-strategy@lbbd.gov.uk

AGENDA ITEM 6

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

31 January 2023

Title: Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Report of the Operational Director of Enforcement and Community Safety

Open Report For Information

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Contact Details:

Karen Collier,

Service Manager Environmental Health & Public Protection | E-mail:
karen.collier@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Director:
Gary Jones, Operational Director, Enforcement and Community Safety

Accountable Strategic Leadership Director:
Alison Stuart, Strategic Director, Law and Governance (and Monitoring Officer)

Summary
This report provides an overview of the key changes to the new section 182 guidance
issued under the Licensing Act 2003.

Recommendation(s)
The Licensing and Regulatory Committee is recommended to note the report.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 This report provides an overview of the key changes to the new section 182
Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 issued by the Home Office in December
2022. The guidance document is available online at Revised guidance issued under
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (December 2022) (accessible) - GOV.UK
(www.gov.uk)

1.2  Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that, in carrying out its functions, a
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ the s.182 guidance and it is therefore
binding on all licensing authorities and therefore needs to be considered by those
involved in the licensing process.

2. Changes to section 182 Guidance
The key changes to the guidance are set out in this section.

Mobile, remote, internet and other delivery sales

2.1 The advice to persons operating an alcohol delivery service is strengthened to
suggest they "should" (previously "may") consider contacting their licensing
authority under paragraph 3.10.

Page 135


mailto:karen.collier@lbbd.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003/revised-guidance-issued-under-section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-december-2022-accessible
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003/revised-guidance-issued-under-section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-december-2022-accessible
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003/revised-guidance-issued-under-section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-december-2022-accessible

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Entitlement to Work in the UK

In terms of right to work and entitlement, the revised guidance substantially
changed 4.21 onwards which need to be considered carefully when dealing with
non-UK applicants. Much of these changes reflect the change in relationship
between the United Kingdom and the European Union/European Economic Area.

Removal of "Annex A — documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the
UK"

Closure Notices

The revised guidance introduces section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act
2001, dealing with closure notices. There is a new section on “Closure Notices” at
paragraph 4.83.

Club Certificates
Paragraph 6.11 clarifies that Home Office Immigration is not not a responsible
authority in relation to club premises certificates.

Temporary Event Notices (TENs)

Paragraph 7.15 of the guidance updates the statutory limits for TENs. There is
an increase in the allowance of temporary event notices from the year 2022 to
2023, which will increase from 15 to 20 per calendar year. This also increases
for the same time period onwards, the total duration from 21 to 26 days per
calendar year.

Paragraph 7.34 clarifies that there is no right of appeal in relation to a late
temporary event notice, following objection by the Police or Environmental
Health Officer. The event is invalid and cannot go ahead.

Full Variations Process

Paragraph 8.76 has been amended to clarify that full variations should not be
used to “vary substantially the premises to which the licence relates”. This
suggests that if there is to be a substantial change to the premises, there should
be a new licence application rather than a full variation.

Conditions Attached to a Premises Licence and club premises certificates
Paragraph 10.5 clairifed that “it is not acceptable for licensing authorities to
simply replicate the working from an applicant’s operating schedule”. A condition
should be interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention, and be
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Planning and Building Control

The “Agent of Change” principle has been included in paragraph 14.66. It states
that “where there is an application for planning permission, the National
Planning Policy Framework expects new development can be integrated
effectively with existing businesses and community facilities (such as places of
worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs). Existing businesses and
facilities should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a result of
development permitted after they were established. Where the operation of an
existing business or community facility could have a significant adverse effect on
a new development (including changes of use) in its vicinity, the applicant (or

Page 136



“agent of change”) should be required by the local planning authority to provide
suitable mitigation before the development has been completed.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: None

List of appendices: None

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

31 January 2023

Title: Update on Licensing Applications and Hearings

Report of the Operational Director of Enforcement and Community Safety

Open Report

For Information

Wards Affected: All

Key Decision: No

Report Author:

Karen Collier,
Service Manager Environmental Health & Public Protection

Contact Details:

E-mail:
karen.collier@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Director:

Gary Jones, Operational Director, Enforcement and Community Safety

Accountable Strategic Leadership Director:

Alison Stuart, Strategic Director, Law and Governance (and Monitoring Officer)

Summary

This report provides an update on licence applications, public hearings and appeals
falling under the remit of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee, together with other

matters of interest to the Committee.

Recommendation(s)

The Licensing and Regulatory Committee is recommended to note the report.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 This report provides an update on licence applications, determinations and
appeals falling under the remit of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee, together

with other matters of interest to the Committee.

2. Proposal and Issues

2.1 Table 1 shows a summary of the applications which were received, processed, and
determined during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Page 139


mailto:karen.collier@lbbd.gov.uk

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Table 1: Licence Applications Processed between April and December 2022

2022-23 Q1 2022-23 Q2 2022-23 Q3
Licence Apr | May | Jun | July | Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec | Total
Applications
Processed

No. New Premises & | 6 10 16 | 17 10 |8 3 19 |8 97
Personal Licence

No. Temp. Event 8 7 5 17 19 15 5 22 |8 96
Notice
No. Licence 10 |16 11 |23 10 |14 5 14 10 | 113

Variations (All
Types)and ad hoc
changes

No. Other Type of 3 6 13 138 |21 (14 8 6 3 112
Licences (including
Gambling, Scrap
metal, Special
Treatment & Animal)

No. Pavement 0 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 0 4
Licence

Licensing Act 2003

In total, 306 applications, including 97 applications for new premises and personal
licences and 96 applications for Temporary Event Notices, have been received. The
other 113 applications comprised a mixture of major and minor licence variations
and designated premises supervisor variations, plus transfers and administrative
amendments.

Gambling Act 2005

Five applications have been received for betting and gaming licences.

London Local Authorities Act 1991

In total, 77 applications have been received for new and renewal special treatments
licences.

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

Eleven applications have been received over the annual renewals.
Explosives Regulations 2014

The majority of fireworks applications and explosives storage applications are

processed from August. Seventeen have been received in the period reported
above.

Page 140




2.7

3.1

4.1

5.1

Animal Welfare Act 2006 / Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving
Animals) (England) Regulations 2018

Two animal licensing applications were received.
Public Hearings

One licensing hearing was held under the Licensing Act 2003 during the period 1
September 2022 to 31 December 2022.

(a) A Hearing considered an application for a premises licence for Venue 121
Limited , 121 Broad Street, Dagenham RM10 9HP.

On 20t December 2022, the Licensing Sub-Committee considered the
application for which three representations against the premises application had
been received from the Metropolitan Police Licensing Officer, Barking and
Dagenham Council Environmental Protection Officer and Barking and
Dagenham Licensing Enforcement Officer. The Sub-Committee resolved to
refuse the application and noted that there was insufficient information available
to ensure they could promote the licensing objectives. Full details area available
on the council website at Agenda for Licensing Sub-Committee on Tuesday, 20
December 2022, 7:00 pm | LBBD

Prosecutions

There have been no prosecutions between the period 15t September 2022 and 31st
December 2022.

Appeals

There have been no appeals heard during between the period 15t September 2022
and 31st December 2022.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:
Agenda for Licensing Sub-Committee on Tuesday, 20 December 2022, 7:00 pm | LBBD

List of appendices: None

Page 141


https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/internet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=724&MId=13065&Ver=4
https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/internet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=724&MId=13065&Ver=4
https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/internet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=724&MId=13065&Ver=4

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2022
	4 Sub-Committee Minutes- To receive the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting held on 20 December 2022
	5 Gambling Act 2005: Draft Policy Statement 2023 - 2026 post Public Consultation
	App 1 Cover Sheet
	App 1 Document 1
	App 1 Document 2
	App 1 Document 3
	App 1 Document 4
	App 2 Officer comments
	App 3 Draft Gambling Policy Statement 23-26
	App 4 EIA Screening Tool

	6 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
	7 Update on Licensing Applications and Hearings



